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Report of Independent Public Accountants

To the Stockholders of VSE Corporation:
We have audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
the consolidated financial statements included in VSE Corporation's annual
report to stockholders incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K and have
issued our report thereon dated March 1, 1996. Our audits were made for the
purpose of forming an opinion on those statements taken as a whole. The
schedule listed in the index is the responsibility of the company's management
and is presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and Exchange
Commission's rules and is not part of the basic consolidated financial
statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in
our opinion, fairly states, in all material respects the financial data
required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.

/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Washington, D.C.,
March 1, 1996

VSE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in thousands)

SCHEDULE II

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Additions
to and
Balance
Charged
Deductions
Balance
December 31,
to
from December 31,
Description
1994
Income
Reserves
1995
- ------------------- -----------------------<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Allowance for
doubtful accounts $ 247
$ (87)
$
0
$ 160
========
========
========
=========
Allowance for contract
disallowances
$ 1,338
$ (651)
$ 662
$ 1,349
========
========
========
=========
Valuation allowance
for income taxes
$ 50
$
0
$
0
$ 50
========
========
========
=========
Additions
to and
Balance
Charged
Deductions
Balance
December 31,
to
from December 31,
Description
1993
Income
Reserves
1994
- --------------------------------------<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>

Allowance for
doubtful accounts $ 251
$
0
$ (4)
$ 247
========
========
========
=========
Allowance for contract
disallowances
$ 1,384
$
0
$ (46)
$ 1,338
========
========
========
=========
Valuation allowance
for income taxes
$ 50
$
0
$
0
$ 50
========
========
========
=========
Additions
to and
Balance
Charged
Deductions
Balance
December 31,
to
from December 31,
Description
1992
Income
Reserves
1993
- --------------------------------------<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Allowance for
doubtful accounts $ 246
$
0
$
5
$ 251
========
========
========
=========
Allowance for contract
disallowances
$ 1,391
$
0
$ (7)
$ 1,384
========
========
========
=========
Valuation allowance
for income taxes
$
0
$
0
$ 50
$ 50
========
========
========
=========
</TABLE>
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Reference No.
Exhibit No.
per Item 601 of
in this
Regulation S-K
Description of Exhibit
Form 10-K
- -----------------------------------------------------------------------------2

3

4

9
10

Plan of acquisition, reorganization, arrangement,
liquidation or succession
Exchange Agreement dated as of March 25, 1992,
amended as of September 1, 1992, by and between VSE
Corporation and JBT Holding Corp., et al. (Exhibit A
to Exhibit 1, Proxy Statement, filed on
Form 8-K on November 2, 1992)
*
Articles of incorporation and by-laws
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of VSE
Corporation dated as of February 6, 1996
Exhibit V
By-Laws of VSE Corporation as amended through
February 6, 1996
Exhibit VI
Instruments defining the rights of security holders,
including indentures
Specimen Stock Certificate as of May 19, 1983
(Exhibit 4 to Registration Statement No. 2-83255
dated April 22, 1983 on Form S-2).
*
Voting trust agreement
Not Applicable
Material contracts
Employment Agreement entered into as of January 1,
1996, by and between VSE Corporation and
Donald M. Ervine
Exhibit III
Employment Agreement entered into as of January 1,
1996, by and between VSE Corporation and
Richard B. McFarland
Exhibit IV
VSE Corporation Deferred Supplemental Compensation
Plan effective January 1, 1994 (Exhibit III to
Form 10-K dated March 23, 1995)
*
Stock Purchase Agreement dated August 29, 1995 by
and between VSE Corporation and the shareholders
of Energetics Incorporated (Exhibit 2 to Form 8-K
dated September 13, 1995 and Amendment 1 on Form
8-K/A dated November 9, 1995)
*

11
12
13
16
18
19
22
23
24
25
28
29

Statement re computation of per share earnings Not Applicable
Statements re computation of ratios
Not Applicable
Annual report to security holders, Form 10-Q
or quarterly report to security holders
Exhibit II
Letter re change in certifying accountant
Not Applicable
Letter re change in accounting principles
Not Applicable
Previously unfiled documents
Not Applicable
Subsidiaries of the registrant
Exhibit I
Published report regarding matters submitted
to vote of security holders
Not Applicable
Consents of experts and counsel
Not Applicable
Power of attorney
Not Applicable
Additional exhibits
Not Applicable
Information from reports furnished to State
insurance regulatory authorities
Not Applicable

*Document has been filed as indicated and is incorporated by reference herein.
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EXHIBIT I
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
The following is a listing of the subsidiaries of the Registrant:
Jurisdiction of
Organization
--------------CMstat Corporation

Delaware

Energetics Incorporated

Maryland

Human Resource Systems, Inc.

Delaware

Schmoldt Engineering Services Company *
VSE Corona, Inc.

Oklahoma

Delaware

VSE Services Corporation

Delaware

* On February 7, 1996, the Registrant sold its wholly owned subsidiary
Schmoldt Engineering Services Company.
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Financial Highlights
Selected Financial Data (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
1995
1994
1993
1992
1991
------- ------- ------- ------- ------<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Revenues, principally from
contracts . . . . . . . . . $75,067 $65,581 $79,609 $78,305 $68,317
======= ======= ======= ======= =======
Income (loss) from continuing
operations . . . . . . . . $ 1,646 $ 1,553 $ 1,159 $ 1,316 $ (610)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting for income taxes.
0
0
284
0
0
Loss from discontinued
operations . . . . . . . .
0
0
0
0 (4,068)
Gain on sale of discontinued
operations. . . . . . . . .
0
0
0
776
0
------- ------- ------- ------- ------Net income (loss) . . . $ 1,646 $ 1,553 $ 1,443 $ 2,092 $(4,678)
======= ======= ======= ======= =======
Earnings per common share:
Income (loss) from continuing
operations . . . . . . . . $ 1.90 $ 1.80 $ 1.34 $ .85 $ (.36)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting for income
taxes . . . . . . . . . .
0
0
.33
0
0
Loss from discontinued
operations . . . . . . . .
0
0
0
0 (2.42)
Gain on sale of discontinued
operations . . . . . . . .
0
0
0
.50
0
------- ------- ------- ------- ------Net income (loss) . . . . $ 1.90 $ 1.80 $ 1.67 $ 1.35 $ (2.78)
======= ======= ======= ======= =======
Total assets . . . . . . . . . $29,106 $21,272 $23,546 $20,820 $34,326
======= ======= ======= ======= =======
Long-term obligations . . . . $ 6,546 $ 886 $ 3,834 $ 3,282 $ 3,789
======= ======= ======= ======= =======
Stockholders' investment . . . $13,553 $12,101 $10,816 $ 9,623 $21,599
======= ======= ======= ======= =======
Book value per common share . $ 15.59 $ 14.02 $ 12.53 $ 11.15 $ 12.92
======= ======= ======= ======= =======
Cash dividends per common
share . . . . . . . . . . . $ .33 $ .31 $ .29 $ .28 $ .28
======= ======= ======= ======= =======
This consolidated summary of selected financial data should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes
included elsewhere in this Annual Report.
</TABLE>
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Report from the Chairman and CEO
The company put on seven-league boots in 1995. During the year we reported a
landmark contract award, aggressive acquisitions, important additions to our
technology, and most importantly, the excitement we feel as new employees,
managers, and directors join the VSE team. In this report I want to share with
you some of our accomplishments in 1995 and our vision and strategies for
continued growth in the years ahead.
The BAV Contract
VSE has been an important player in America's defense community since 1959, and
we are determined to build on our reputation and strengths as a dependable and
innovative contractor. Several years ago we identified a potential Navy program
which could help meet the Navy's need to realize cost savings in the engineering, overhaul, maintenance, training, and logistic support associated with the
transfer of Navy ships to foreign governments. Through the privatization of
this effort, the Navy could complete the drawdown of its active and reserve
ship inventory from the six hundred ship Navy previously required to the
restated requirements of the post Cold War era.
Putting together a world-class team of subcontractors with the resources,
skills, and global presence required to execute the contract (see inside cover),
VSE's BAV Division submitted a proposal which was judged by the Navy to be
technically superior to eight other competing proposals. Award of a cost plus
award fee contract was made to BAV in August 1995. The award was protested by
two of the other competitors, and in late January 1996 the General Accounting
Office (GAO) denied the protests, upholding the Navy's selection of BAV. The
contract, including option periods which may be exercised by the Navy, provides
for a ten-year effort. Revenues under the contract will depend on the number
and size of the delivery orders for ships and services which may be ordered by
foreign governments. The Navy has estimated that up to $1 billion, and possibly
more, may be ordered under the contract during the ten-year period.
The Navy's ship transfer program is good for America. It means challenging work
for American engineers and naval architects, technicians, suppliers and
shipyards from Virginia to Oregon and New York to Louisiana, and many other
states. The program will be substantially funded by foreign governments, and
the additional capability gained by our allies as we transfer destroyers,
frigates, and auxiliary ships to them will reduce the burden on our country in
meeting mutual defense needs around the globe.
Work under the contract will be managed by BAV from VSE's headquarters facility
in Alexandria, Virginia. During the initial years of the contract, we expect
that the bulk of the work will be performed in U. S. shipyards by BAV's teaming
partners. Because it is a delivery order contract, we are unable to predict
the amount of work which will be ordered each year. While there are no
assurances, our initial preparations are targeted towards revenues, principally
subcontract revenues, of between $100 and $200 million a year. In terms of
earnings, we do not expect the BAV work to be as profitable as some of our other
contract operations. For example, we anticipate a substantial amount of
nonbillable interest expense associated with financing large subcontracts.
Notwithstanding the lower margins, the contract is expected to provide a
substantial base for developing other business opportunities. Significant
revenues under the contract are not expected to be recorded until later in 1996.
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The BAV contract represents the kind of opportunity for growth which VSE will
continue to pursue in the years ahead. There are a number of other privatization programs which may develop in the defense establishment. We have
identified some of these programs, and we are excited about our prospects. The
BAV contract has increased our profile and reputation, and we hope to build
rapidly on this success.

Other Business Developments
In previous years we outlined the key components of our strategy following the
completion of the spin-off of our non-engineering subsidiaries in 1992. As the
government downsizes its budget for new procurements, we streamlined our
operations and targeted high profile defense opportunities such as ensuring
logistics support for Navy aircraft, engineering support for Army wheeled and
tracked vehicles, military readiness programs centered on technology insertion,
product improvement, service life extension, prototype development, and
information technology, and the growth of our non-defense business.
One of our largest program efforts in 1995, with option periods through 1999, is
providing logistics support for Navy and Marine Corps aircraft such as the
F/A-18 (Hornet), F-14 (Tomcat), A-6 (Intruder), AV-8B (Harrier), V-22 (Osprey),
and a number of military helicopters, missiles, and cruise missiles. Our technical logistics support extends to data management and documentation; cost,
readiness, and supportability analyses; logistics plans; and systems engineering and configuration management. We enjoyed significant growth in this
program in 1995, and we anticipate further growth in 1996.
For Army clients, we continue to provide a broad range of engineering services.
One high profile program is the effort of VSE engineers to develop an improved
combat bridging vehicle design to assist in the rapid deployment of bridge
sections like those being used by the Army on the rivers in Bosnia. Another
important program is providing systems technical support services for a variety
of military vehicles and trailers. Among the improvements recently developed
are vehicle fire detection and suppression systems to improve the safety of
military vehicles for U. S. combat personnel. Other efforts are directed to
incorporating advanced technology in such areas as tires, tire inflation,
lubrication, engine cooling, exhaust systems, anti-lock brakes, LED lights,
collision avoidance, and other improvements to enhance the safety and extend
the life-cycle of vehicle systems.
The use and development of information technology to solve client problems is
an integral part of VSE's service approach. Since acquiring CMstat Corporation
in May 1995, CMstat has doubled its revenues, nearly doubled its staff, and
recorded important sales to major corporations in a number of key industries including aerospace, electronics, defense, and telecommunications. CMstat is a
leading developer of cross-platform configuration management and product data
management (CM/PDM) software.
VSE's growth in non-defense government agencies accelerated rapidly in 1995.
With the acquisition of Energetics Incorporated in August 1995, VSE allied
itself with one of the premiere companies supporting technology research,
development, and demonstration programs, principally for the Department of
Energy and other clients. Energy conservation and efficiency, advanced technology transfer, and feasibility, assessment, and development programs affecting
industrial, transportation, and building concerns of the present and future are
a few of the
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growth areas served by Energetics. Working with scientists, engineers, and
policy experts from around the world, Energetics has established a reputation as
a reliable management partner for energy and advanced technology programs.
Our engineering support services contract for the U. S. Postal Service continued
in 1995 under a new, five-year competitive contract. Under effective management, and supported by contractor efforts such as those provided by VSE at the
Engineering Center in Merrifield, Virginia, the Postal Service reported a
surplus in 1995. We believe that VSE's record during the last twenty years in
performing engineering and support service tasks for the Postal Service will
assist us in expanding our business in 1996 with this important client.
Upgrading our technical capabilities is a strategic goal in VSE. We performed
work in a number of new areas in 1995 which we hope will translate into
contracts in the years ahead. Some of the new areas include sensor systems,
facial recognition and imaging software, fastener classification and testing
systems, automated data collection, antenna assembly transport systems, and
battlefield power management products.

Our goal as always in everything we do is to provide clients with engineering
solutions that work better and cost less. This is our promise, and this is
the challenge met everyday by the employees who comprise the VSE Team.
Business Strategy
Based on the success obtained during the past three years, the Board of
Directors reviewed its strategic guidance to management. Stated very simply,
the Board determined that the company was on the right track to achieve growth
and an increase in shareholder value.
The principal aim of our business is and remains to provide engineering
solutions and other support services and products, primarily to the federal
government, to maintain and modernize equipment and systems. Where our
experience and qualifications permit, we also provide these services in
related industries, such as the health care industry, and to commercial, state
and local government customers.
The Board directed us to pursue revenue growth by increasing our existing
business base and by accelerating our search for well-managed acquisition
candidates. With the award of the BAV contract and the successful acquisitions
of CMstat and Energetics in 1995, we believe this approach has the best
potential to achieve future growth and income.
The defense industry and the government market continue to experience
significant downsizing and consolidation. However, the market remains very
large with substantial opportunities for growth. In recent years, government
agencies have begun to emphasize corporate experience and best value in
determining contract awards in addition to low price criteria. VSE and its
subsidiaries and divisions are well positioned to compete in this environment.
At the same time, making superior acquisitions is a prerequisite for growth
because smaller government budgets and larger, more cost-effective omnibus
contracts intensify the competition. Given the competition, it is not likely
that any one company can present the required depth of corporate experience
necessary to win the large number of contracts necessary to grow at a sustained
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rate. Large teaming agreements (such as that proposed by VSE in winning the
BAV contract), joint ventures, and strategic acquisitions will be necessary to
achieve a sustained rate of revenue growth.
Substantial per share earnings and share price appreciation are important
company and management goals. To achieve these goals, VSE is committed to (a)
providing customers with quality services and products, and (b) observing all
legal, ethical, industry, and regulatory standards in everything we do. We
believe there is no other way to increase shareholder value.
In February 1996 VSE divested its wholly owned subsidiary Schmoldt Engineering
Services Company of Bartlesville, Oklahoma. Schmoldt recorded a pretax loss in
1995, and it did not fit well into our current or prospective business lines and
expectations for growth, income, and increased shareholder value.
The VSE Team
On December 31, 1995, Harold P. Weinberg retired from the Board of Directors,
having devoted more than 34 years of service to VSE. Also in 1995, Jack Z.
Moore, Vice President, retired after more than 30 years of service, and in early
1996, Edwin Barrineau, Senior Vice President, retired after 13 years of service.
William J. Nelson, Vice President, was advanced to relieve Ed Barrineau as
general manager of our systems engineering center operations. My thanks to each
of these dedicated managers and to all other VSE service employees who retired
during the year.
We are very pleased to report that Admiral Robert J. Kelly, USN, (Ret.) joined
VSE's Board of Directors as of January 1, 1996. Admiral Kelly, formerly
Commander in Chief of the U.S. Pacific Fleet, brings a wealth of experience and
judgment to VSE that will materially assist us in sharpening our performance and
expanding our horizons for the future. We are also delighted to welcome all the
other men and women of talent and experience who joined VSE's service team in

1995, including Major General Thomas L. Prather, Jr., USA (Ret.), formerly
Deputy Chief of Staff for Research, Development and Engineering, Army Materiel
Command.
Continuing the precedent established last year, at the end of the Annual Report
you will find the names of the VSE team members who served our customers at
year-end. They are the people who make VSE the exciting growth company it has
become, and we are happy to have the opportunity to recognize them.
As always, we welcome the support and interest of VSE's shareholders, and we
look forward to meeting you at our Annual Meeting of Stockholders or at one of
our offices. This is your company. Your considered questions, comments, and
suggestions are always appreciated.
D. M. Ervine
Chairman and CEO
March 1996
Description of Business
General. During 1995 VSE Corporation ("VSE" or the "company") and its
subsidiaries and divisions operated in a single industry, the professional and
technical services industry.
Introduction. The company's engineering, technical, and management services
operations are performed by VSE and its subsidiaries and divisions including
the BAV Division, CMstat Corporation, Energetics Incorporated, Human Resource
Systems, Inc., Schmoldt Engineering Services Company, Value Systems Services,
and VSE Services Corporation. Engineering, technical, and management services
accounted for 100% of VSE's revenues from continuing operations in 1995, 1994,
and 1993.
Services, Facilities, Personnel, and Contracts. VSE was established in
1959. For the past 37 years, the company has provided diversified engineering,
technical, and management services, principally to agencies of the United States
Government (the "government") and to government prime contractors. VSE provides
engineering, information technology, technical support, and management services
to assist customers in their efforts to reduce the cost and improve the
reliability and maintainability of various equipment and systems.
VSE services include program planning; design and engineering, including
prototype development; electronic warfare support; logistics management; ship
reactivation, maintenance, repair, overhaul planning, and follow on technical
support; office automation systems and support; training; technology research,
development, and demonstration programs involving energy conservation and
efficiency, advanced technology transfers, and feasibility, assessment, and
development programs; and information systems and products, including crossplatform technical data, product data, and configuration management (CM/PDM)
support. Typical projects include sustaining engineering support for military
vehicles, combat trailers, bridging systems, and amphibious transport; ocean
engineering and mooring systems; depot repair operations; electronic warfare
software development; machinery condition analysis; specification preparation
for ship alterations and repairs; training and video aids for air-launched
missiles; and technical data package preparation.
VSE's principal offices are located in a five-story building in Alexandria,
Virginia, leased by VSE through the year 2003, cancelable as of 1998. This
building contains approximately 108,000 square feet of engineering, shop, and
administrative space. In addition, engineering services customers are also
served from more than 20 branch offices located at or near customer sites to
facilitate communications and enhance project performance. The branch offices
are generally occupied under short-term leases and include an aggregate of
approximately 160,000 square feet of office, shop, and warehouse space.
VSE also owns and operates an engineering test center in Ladysmith,
Virginia, consisting of approximately 44 acres of land and an improved storage
and vehicle maintenance facility. This facility has been used by VSE to test
military and commercial equipment for which VSE provides system technical
support and other engineering services and to supplement the Alexandria,
Virginia, shop requirements.

VSE services are provided by a staff of approximately 1,200 employees
(including about 285 part-time employees). These employees are professional
and technical personnel having high levels of education, training, and skills,
including (a) mechanical, electrical, electronic, chemical, industrial, energy
and environmental services, marine, and ocean engineers, (b) computer systems,
applications, and data management specialists, (c) technical editors and
writers, and (d) graphic designers and technicians. The expertise required by
VSE's customers also frequently includes knowledge of government administrative
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procedures. Many VSE employees have had experience as government employees in
the past. The company considers its relationships with employees to be
excellent.
VSE seeks to provide its customers with competitive, cost effective
solutions to specific problems. These problems generally require a detailed
technical knowledge of materials, processes, functional characteristics,
information systems, technology and products, and an in-depth understanding of
the basic requirements for effective systems and equipment. Billing for
services is generally accomplished by billing customers for a specified levelof-effort incurred in performing a project or providing a service or for
installed products, systems, and maintenance charges.
During 1995, VSE provided services to the government under approximately
120 contracts, some of which are of an indefinite quantity/ordering nature.
These contracts permit the contracting agency to issue delivery orders or task
orders in an expeditious manner to satisfy relatively short-term requirements
for engineering and technical services. The services ordered pursuant to
indefinite quantity/ordering arrangements are normally performed and completed
within a one year period. During 1995 VSE provided services under approximately
525 such task orders.
The following table shows the revenues of VSE, its subsidiaries and
divisions by customer or agency:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
VSE Revenues by Customer or Agency
(dollars in thousands)
1995
1994
1993
Group or Agency
Revenues % Revenues % Revenues %
- --------------------- ----- ------- ----- ------- ----<S>
<C>
<C> <C>
<C> <C>
<C>
U. S. Navy
$42,402 56.5% $36,086 55.0% $47,462 59.6%
U. S. Army
18,291 24.4 17,860 27.2 19,502 24.5
Other government customers 10,563 14.1 8,443 12.9 8,865 11.1
Commercial
3,811 5.0 3,192 4.9 3,780 4.8
------- ----- ------- ----- ------- ----Total
$75,067 100.0% $65,581 100.0% $79,609 100.0%
======= ===== ======= ===== ======= =====
</TABLE>
During 1995 VSE's 15 largest contracts accounted for approximately 80% of
total revenues, and one such contract with the U. S. Navy accounted for more
than 13% of such revenues. This contract included a base year and option
periods which expired in June 1995. See "Results of Operations-Revenues" in
"Management Discussion and Analysis" for a discussion of this contract.
The company's services are typically provided under cost-plus-fee,
time-and-materials, or fixed-price contracts. Under cost-plus-fee contracts,
the customer reimburses VSE for its allowable costs permitted by regulations
and pays a fee based on negotiated terms. Under time-and-materials contracts,
the customer pays VSE at fixed hourly rates for direct labor costs and the
related overhead and profit, and reimburses VSE for the cost of materials without profit. Under fixed-price contracts, the customer pays an agreed price for
services or products. Under fixed-price contracts and time-and-materials
contracts, VSE bears the risk that increased or unexpected costs may reduce its
profit or cause it to sustain a loss. To the extent VSE incurs actual costs

below anticipated costs on these contracts, VSE realizes greater profit
margins.
Marketing, Backlog, Competition and Risks. VSE marketing activities are
conducted by its professional staff of engineers, analysts, program managers,
contract administrators, and other personnel. Information concerning new
programs and requirements becomes available in the course of contract perform-
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ance, through formal and informal briefings, from participation in professional
organizations, and from literature published by the Government, trade
associations, professional organizations, and commercial entities.
As of December 31, 1995, VSE had proposals pending for engineering services
contracts covering approximately $224 million in services for the Department of
Defense or other government agencies or prime contractors. If these contracts
are awarded to VSE, resulting ordering periods could extend through 2001.
However, there is no assurance that VSE will be the successful bidder for any
of these contracts. Moreover, there can be no assurance that contract awards,
if any, will result in any revenues to VSE because (a) contract awards are
often rescinded as a result of the government's bid protest procedures,
(b) contracts may not be funded at the nominal amounts cited in competitive bid
announcements, and (c) contracts when funded may be terminated at the
convenience of the government.
During 1995 and 1994 VSE was awarded contracts having potential ceiling
values of approximately $1.1 billion and $330 million, respectively.
VSE's funded backlog of work as of December 31, 1995, 1994, and 1993 was
approximately $37.6 million, $36.9 million and $33.8 million, respectively.
"Funded" backlog is defined as orders for services that have not been fully
rendered and for which funding has been provided either at the time of award or
thereafter. Substantially all of the funded backlog is expected to be
completed within one year.
The excess of unfulfilled contract estimates over the incremental funding
authorized represents an "unfunded" backlog. Based on the total estimated
value of contracts actually awarded, the potential revenues for work remaining
to be performed under existing engineering services contracts (both funded and
unfunded backlog) was approximately $1.3 billion, $350 million, and $113
million, as of December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, respectively. VSE has no
reasonable basis on which to determine when or if such backlog may be funded.
However, because of uncertainties associated with changing program requirements and the ultimate availability of funds, VSE believes that measurements
of unfunded backlog are of limited use in evaluating its future workload.
The services business in which VSE is engaged is very competitive. There
area substantial number of other organizations, some of which are large,
diversified firms with greater financial resources and larger technical staffs,
which are capable of rendering essentially the same services as those offered
by VSE. Such companies may be publicly owned or privately held and may be
divisions of much larger organizations including large manufacturing
corporations. The government's own "in-house" capabilities are also, in effect,
competitors of VSE (including the government's own non-profit federally funded
research and development centers) because government employees often perform
many of the services that might otherwise be performed by VSE.
Government agencies have placed an increased emphasis on awarding contracts
of the types performed by VSE on a competitive basis as opposed to a noncompetitive basis. All significant contracts currently being performed by VSE
were either initially awarded on a competitive basis or have been renewed at
least once on a competitive basis. In addition, the United States defense
budget has been restrained by the federal budget deficit in recent years. As a
result, there is increased competition for the remaining government work.
It is not possible to predict the extent of competition which VSE will
encounter as a result of changing economic or competitive conditions, customer
requirements, or technological developments. VSE believes the principal com-
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petitive factors for the engineering services business in which VSE is engaged
are technical and financial qualifications, quality of services and products,
and price.
VSE's business with the government is subject to the risk that one or more
of its potential contracts or extensions of existing contracts may be awarded
by the contracting agency to a competitor, including "small and disadvantaged"
or minority-owned businesses pursuant to "set-aside" programs administered by
the Small Business Administration or may be "bundled" into omnibus contracts
for very large businesses. In addition, VSE's business is subject to funding
delays, extensions, and moratoriums caused by political and administrative
disagreements such as occurred during the 1995 U.S. budget negotiations. To
date, the effect of such negotiations and disagreements on VSE has not been
material; however, no assurances can be given about such risks with respect to
future years.
Government contracts are subject to termination at the government's convenience, which means that the government may terminate the contract at any time,
without cause. However, during VSE's 37-year history the aggregate amount of
such government terminations for convenience has not been material. If a
government contract is terminated for convenience, generally VSE is reimbursed
for its allowable costs to the date of termination and is paid a proportionate
amount of the stipulated profit or fee for the work actually performed.
The books and records of the company are subject to audit by the Defense
Contract Audit Agency, which audits can result in adjustments to contract costs
and fees. Audits by such agency have been completed for all years through 1992
without material adjustments. However, there is no assurance that future
adjustments will not be required.
Depending on solicitation requirements and other factors, VSE offers its
professional and technical services and products through various competitive
contract arrangements and business units which are responsive to customer
requirements and which may also provide an opportunity for diversification.
Such arrangements include prime contracts, subcontracts, cooperative arrangements, joint ventures, dedicated ventures, dedicated cost centers, separate
profit centers (divisions), and subsidiaries.
In 1991 VSE formed the Value Systems Services ("VSS") division to join with
a prime contractor on a bid for a U. S. Marine Corps contract. Services under
the subcontract commenced in January 1992. The subcontract generated revenues
to VSS of approximately $4 million in 1994 and $11 million in 1993 equal to
about 10% of VSE's total business volume over these two years. In April 1994,
work on this contract ceased.
In 1991 VSE also formed VSE Services Corporation ("VSES") as a subsidiary
to compete for certain contracts, including security systems work and other
commercial opportunities. VSES has been inactive since 1992.
In 1994 VSS was awarded a new contract with a different Navy customer to
provide logistic support services for Naval aircraft, helicopters, and airborne
weapons systems. This contract has the potential to generate revenues to VSE
of about $77 million over a five-year period ending in 1999.
VSE has sought to expand its engineering services customer base to
non-defense clients, such as the U. S. Postal Service. In 1994, VSE won a
recompete of a contract worth approximately $30 million for five years with the
U. S. Postal Service.
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VSE's subsidiary, Human Resource Systems, Inc. ("HRSI") provides health care
staffing personnel such as nurses, pharmacists, and technicians, primarily to
the U. S. Navy. HRSI has approximately 70 employees. HRSI has been awarded
additional contracts from the U. S. Postal Service for real estate and
environmental consulting.
In 1995 VSE made two acquisitions to expand and diversify its business base.

In May 1995, VSE acquired CMstat Corporation, an information technology company
located in San Diego, California. CMstat is a leading supplier of commercial
(off-the-shelf) software products and technology to manage engineering, product,
and configuration management data. In August 1995, VSE acquired Energetics
Incorporated, an energy management and environmental technology company located
in Columbia, Maryland. Energetics provides technical and management services
for advanced technology programs, primarily for the Department of Energy and
other government and commercial clients.
In 1995 VSE also established the BAV Division to provide engineering,
technical and support services for U.S. Navy ships to be sold, leased, or
otherwise transferred to foreign governments. BAV was awarded a Navy contract
in August 1995, which has the potential to generate revenues of up to $1
billion depending on delivery order requirements and option periods exercised
over the next ten years.
Schmoldt Engineering Services Company, which was acquired by VSE in 1990,
was divested in February 1996.

Management Discussion and Analysis
The discussion and analysis which follows is intended to assist in understanding and evaluating the results of operations, financial condition, and
certain other matters of VSE Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries
("VSE" or the "company"), CMstat Corporation ("CMstat"), acquired in May 1995,
Energetics Incorporated ("Energetics"), acquired in August 1995, Human Resource
Systems, Inc. ("HRSI"), Schmoldt Engineering Services Company ("Schmoldt
Engineering"), VSE Corona, Inc. ("VCI"), VSE Services Corporation ("VSES"), and
Value Systems Services ("VSS") and BAV, unincorporated divisions of VSE. The
company is engaged principally in providing engineering, software development,
testing, and management services to the U. S. Government (the "government").
VCI and VSES have generally been inactive after 1992. Intercompany sales are
principally at cost.
Results of Operations
Revenues
The following table shows the revenues from operations of VSE and
subsidiaries and such revenues as a percent of total revenues:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Revenues from Operations
(dollars in thousands)
1995
1994
1993
Company or Business Unit
Revenues % Revenues % Revenues %
- ------------------------------ ----- ------- ----- ------- ----<S>
<C>
<C> <C>
<C> <C> <C>
VSE (parent only) . . . . . . . $56,888 75.8 $57,042 87.0 $65,332 82.1
VSS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,396 11.2 5,503 8.4 11,222 14.1
Energetics . . . . . . . . . . 4,007 5.3
0 0.0
0 0.0
HRSI . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,655 2.2 1,138 1.7
896 1.1
BAV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,431 1.9
0 0.0
0 0.0
CMstat . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,412 1.9
0 0.0
0 0.0
Schmoldt Engineering . . . . . 1,278 1.7 1,898 2.9 2,159 2.7
------- ----- ------- ----- ------- ----Total revenues . . . . . . . . $75,067 100.0 $65,581 100.0 $79,609 100.0
======= ===== ======= ===== ======= =====
</TABLE>
The largest customer for the engineering services rendered by the company
is the U. S. Department of Defense ("Defense"), including agencies of the U. S.
Army, Navy, and Air Force. The Defense budget has been restrained by the
federal budget deficit in recent years, and as a result of this and increased
competition, VSE's engineering services revenues have decreased from the levels
attained in prior years. There can be no assurance that future reductions in
the Defense budget will not have a material adverse impact on the company's

results of operations or financial position.
Substantially all of the company's revenues from operations depend on the
award of new contracts, on current contracts not being terminated for the
convenience of the government, and on the exercise of option periods and the
satisfaction of incremental funding requirements on current contracts. In
1995, 1994 and 1993, the company did not experience any termination of
contracts for the convenience of the government nor any non-exercise of option
periods on current contracts which were material to the company's results of
operations or financial position.
BAV Contract. In August 1995, VSE's BAV Division was awarded a contract
with the U. S. Navy to provide engineering, technical and logistical support
services associated with the sale, lease, or transfer of Navy ships to foreign
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governments. The contract award was protested and in January 1996 the General
Accounting Office ("GAO") ruled in favor of BAV and denied the protest. BAV
began work on the contract in September 1995 and continued to perform work
under the contract during the protest period. This contract has the potential,
if all options are exercised, to generate revenues in excess of one billion
dollars over a ten year period from 1995 through 2005.
VSE Contracts. VSE had a contract with the U. S. Navy which accounted for
approximately 14% of total revenues in 1995, 17% in 1994, and more than 20% in
1993. This contract was scheduled to expire in September 1992, but was
extended through September 1995. The Navy combined the work performed under
this contract with other related work, and VSE was not the successful bidder
for the new contract. Substantially all work on the contract ended by
September 1995.
VSE has another contract with the U. S. Navy which accounted for
approximately 13% of revenues in 1995. Revenues for this contract have
increased substantially compared to prior years due to increased requirements
for materials and subcontract work. Although work on the contract is expected
to continue through its completion date of September 1996, future levels of
materials sales and subcontractor work are not expected to continue at the increased levels experienced during 1995.
VSS Subcontract. Beginning in January 1992, VSS provided services to the
U. S. Marine Corps under a subcontract. The subcontract generated revenues to
VSS of about $15.4 million during 1994 and 1993, equal to about 10.6% of VSE's
consolidated revenues over these two years. A protest against the award of the
prime contract was sustained by the GAO, and in October 1993, a new prime
contract was awarded to a different contractor. Substantially all work on the
VSS subcontract terminated effective April 1994. There was no revenue
associated with this subcontract during 1995.
VSS Contract. In February 1994 VSS was awarded a new contract with a
U. S. Navy customer. In September 1994 VSS began work on the contract. The
contract generated revenues to VSS equal to approximately 11% of consolidated
revenues in 1995.
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Income from Operations
The following table shows consolidated revenues and income from operations
of VSE and subsidiaries, other items of income and expense, and such amounts as
a percent of total revenues:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Income from Operations
(dollars in thousands)

Description
1995
%
1994
%
1993
%
- ----------------- ----- ------- ----- ------- ----<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Revenues . . . . . . . $75,067 100.0% $65,581 100.0% $79,609 100.0%
Costs and expenses . . 71,458 95.2 61,468 93.7 75,905 95.3
------- ----- ------- ----- ------- ----Gross profit . . . . . 3,609 4.8
4,113 6.3
3,704 4.7
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 763 1.0
1,577 2.4
1,751 2.2
Interest expense . . .
136 0.2
23 0.1
60 0.1
------- ----- ------- ----- ------- ----Income from operations
before income taxes . $ 2,710 3.6% $ 2,513 3.8% $ 1,893 2.4%
======= ===== ======= ===== ======= =====
</TABLE>
Costs and expenses of operations, as a percentage of revenues, remained
relatively stable during 1995, 1994, and 1993. The percentage differences
between 1995 and 1994 and between 1994 and 1993 are primarily due to a
combination of factors, some of which are offsetting, including (a) differences
between costs incurred and whether they may be billed based on contract
provisions, (b) the effects of increases or decreases in facility and equipment
lease renewals, fringe benefit programs, and similar period expenses, (c) costs
associated with contract start-up and termination phases, and (d) effective
project and cost management.
Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased in 1995 as compared
to 1994 and in 1994 as compared to 1993, primarily due to a reduction in
nonreimbursable administrative expenses.
Interest expense increased in 1995 as compared to 1994 due to the depletion
of cash to consummate the acquisitions of CMstat and Energetics in 1995 (see
"Acquisitions and Divestitures" below) and the use of bank borrowings to finance
operations. Interest expense declined in 1994 as compared to 1993 primarily due
to reduced bank borrowings attributable in part to a lower receivables financing
requirement resulting from a lower sales volume.
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Pretax Income
The following table sets forth the pretax income from consolidated
operations of VSE and subsidiaries and the amount of changes of such items
as compared with the prior period:
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Pretax Income from Operations
(dollars in thousands)
1995
1994
to
to
1995
1994
1993
1994
1993
------ ------ ------ ------ -----<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Pretax income from
operations:
VSE (parent only) . . . . $2,094 $2,071 $1,308 $ 23 $ 763
VSS . . . . . . . . . . . 387
418
538
(31)
(120)
Energetics . . . . . . . 197
0
0
197
0
CMstat . . . . . . . . . 166
0
0
166
0
HRSI . . . . . . . . . .
11
0
(52)
11
52
BAV . . . . . . . . . . .
(8)
0
0
(8)
0
Schmoldt Engineering . . (137)
24
99
(161)
(75)
------ ------ ------ ------ -----Income from operations,
before income taxes . . $2,710 $2,513 $1,893 $ 197 $ 620
====== ====== ====== ====== ======
</TABLE>

Pretax income from operations increased by approximately 8% in 1995 as
compared to 1994. The increase in pretax income is primarily due to profits
associated with the new business provided by the acquisitions of Energetics and
CMstat and to the elimination of losses on certain VSE fixed price contracts.
These increases to pretax income were partially offset by reductions in pretax
income due to the reduced level of sales activity of Schmoldt Engineering and
increased interest expense and other costs associated with the acquisitions of
CMstat and Energetics.
Pretax income from operations increased by approximately 33% in 1994 as
compared to 1993 due primarily to increases in income associated with VSE cost
reductions, a nonrecurring reduction in income in 1993 due to a resolution of
a claim against the company, increased profit margins on VSE time and material
contracts, and increased income from invested cash surpluses. These increases
to pretax income were offset by reductions in pretax income due to losses on
certain VSE fixed price contracts, the termination of work associated with the
VSS subcontract in 1994, and the reduced level of sales activity of Schmoldt
Engineering.
Acquisitions and Divestitures
On May 31, 1995 the company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock
of CMstat, which develops and supports software for commercial and government
customers. On August 29, 1995 the company acquired all of the outstanding stock
of Energetics, which supports government and industry technology programs in the
fields of energy use and the environment.
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On February 7, 1996, VSE sold its wholly owned subsidiary Schmoldt
Engineering. Under the terms of the transaction, VSE sold all of the
outstanding capital stock of Schmoldt Engineering to certain officers of
Schmoldt Engineering in exchange for cash and a promissory note for which
principal and interest is payable in installments between March 1, 1996 and
September 1, 2001. The transaction resulted in a pretax loss of approximately
$300 thousand to VSE.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows
A net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of approximately $2.4 million
during 1995 resulted from approximately $6.6 million used in investing
activities, approximately $4.6 million provided by financing activities, and
approximately $450 thousand used in operations. Significant investing
activities included approximately $3.5 million associated with the acquisition
of Energetics, approximately $900 thousand associated with the acquisition of
CMstat, and $2.1 million associated with the purchase of property and
equipment, including property and equipment purchases to support the new BAV
contract. Significant financing activities included borrowing on the company's
$45 million revolving term loan, including commitments for checks outstanding
at year end, of approximately $4.9 million. Cash flows from operations
declined by approximately $6.5 million as compared to 1994 primarily due to
the absence of the decline in receivables experienced in 1994 due to the
terminated VSS subcontract and the additional accounts receivable associated
with BAV, CMstat and Energetics in 1995.
A net increase in cash and cash equivalents of approximately $2.1 million
during 1994 resulted from approximately $6.1 million provided by operations,
approximately $700 thousand used in investing activities, and approximately
$3.3 million used in financing activities. Cash flows from operations
increased by approximately $4.8 million as compared to 1993 primarily due to a
reduction in the level of accounts receivable attributable to a decrease in the
sales of VSE and the termination of work associated with the VSS subcontract.
Investing activities consisted of the purchase of property and equipment.
Significant financing activities included reductions of borrowings on the
company's revolving term bank loan of approximately $2.7 million.

A net increase in cash and cash equivalents of approximately $200 thousand
during 1993 resulted from approximately $1.3 million provided by operations and
approximately $1.1 million used in investing activities. Investing activities
consisted of the purchase of property and equipment.
The company's principal requirements for cash are to finance the costs of
operations pending the collection of accounts receivable, to acquire capital
assets for office and computer support, and to pay cash dividends. Performance
of work under the BAV contract is expected to substantially increase the
company's requirements for cash, however, management believes that the cash
flows from operations and the bank loan commitment are adequate to meet current
operating cash requirements.
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Working Capital
VSE's requirements for working capital are affected significantly by its
revenues and accounts receivable, which are primarily from billings made by
the company to the government or other government prime contractors for
services rendered. Such accounts receivable generally do not present liquidity
or collection problems. Working capital is also affected by (a) contract
retainages, (b) start-up and termination costs associated with new or complete
contracts, (c) capital equipment requirements, and (d) differences between the
provisional billing rates authorized by the government compared to the costs
actually incurred by the company.
Government contracts generally require VSE to pay for material and
subcontract costs included in VSE's contract billings prior to receiving payment for such costs from the government. However, such contracts generally
provide for progress payments on a monthly or semimonthly basis, thereby
reducing requirements for working capital.
Dividends
Cash dividends were declared at the rate of $.325 per share during 1995,
$.305 per share during 1994, and $.29 per share during 1993. Pursuant to its
bank loan agreement (see Note 4 of "Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements"), the payment of cash dividends by VSE is subject to annual rate
restrictions. VSE has paid cash dividends each year since 1973.
Income Taxes
The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 109, "Accounting
for Income Taxes." SFAS No. 109, which was implemented by VSE in fiscal year
1993, requires an asset and liability approach for financial accounting and
reporting purposes. The implementation of SFAS No. 109 added approximately
$284 thousand to net income in 1993.
Inflation and Pricing
Most of the contracts performed by VSE provide for estimates of future
labor costs to be escalated for any option periods provided by the contracts,
while the non-labor costs included in such contracts are normally considered
reimbursable at cost. VSE property and equipment consists principally of
computer systems equipment and furniture and fixtures. The overall impact of
inflation on replacement costs of such property and equipment is expected to be
insignificant.

Executive Officers
Byron S. Bartholomew, 68
Executive Vice President - Business Development since 1993. Senior Vice
President, Program Management, from 1979 to 1992. Service with the Company 26 years.
Thomas J. Corridon, 38
Senior Vice President since 1995 and Comptroller since 1993. Vice President

since 1992. Assistant Vice President since 1991 and Director of Accounting
since 1990. Service with the Company - 8 years.
Donald M. Ervine, 59
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since 1992. President of VSE from 1988
to 1992. Service with the Company - 12 years.
Edward V. Karl, 58
Senior Vice President since 1995. Vice President and General Manager, Applied
Engineering and Information Systems Center since 1993. Assistant Vice
President since 1991. Service with the Company - 8 years.
James M. Knowlton, 53
Senior Vice President since 1993 and General Manager, Engineering and Logistics Center. Vice President since 1990. Service with the Company - 11 years.
Richard B. McFarland, 62
President and Chief Operating Officer since 1993, and a director of VSE since
1988. Service with the Company - 8 years.
Mark A. Robin, 42
Senior Vice President since 1995. Vice President and Director of Human
Resources since 1993. Assistant Vice President since 1991. Service with the
Company - 14 years.
Craig S. Weber, 50
Chief Financial Officer since 1993. Senior Vice President, Secretary and
Treasurer since 1987. Service with the Company - 24 years.
VSE Common Stock
VSE common stock (par value $.05 per share) is traded in The Nasdaq National
Market System, trading symbol: VSEC; newspaper listing: VSE.
The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales price
information on VSE common stock during the last two years based on information
reported by the Nasdaq National Market System. Trading in the VSE common
stock has been sporadic.
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
Quarter
High
Low
Dividends
- ------------------------<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
1994:
March 31 . . . 13-1/2
12
$.075
June 30 . . . 12-1/4
12
.075
September 30 . 13-1/8
11-1/2
.075
December 31 . 14-3/4
14-1/4
.08
For the year 14-3/4
11-1/2
$.305
1995:
March 31 . . . 15-3/4
June 30 . . . 16-1/4
September 30 . 29
December 31 . 27
For the year 29

14
$.08
14-1/4
.08
14-3/4
.08
19-1/2
.085
14
$.325

</TABLE>
There were approximately 1,400 stockholders of VSE common stock as of
March 1, 1996, consisting of about 330 stockholders of record plus the number
of beneficial owner proxy sets provided in connection with VSE's 1995 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to (a) brokers, banks, and nominees and (b)
participants in the VSE Corporation Employee Stock Ownership/401(k) Plan.

VSE has a revolving term loan agreement with a bank which permits the
payment of cash dividends at an annual rate not to exceed $.60 per share, subject to maintaining a minimum consolidated tangible net worth and a maximum
consolidated leverage ratio as defined in the loan agreement. See Note 4
(Debt) of "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" included elsewhere
in this Annual Report.
Report of Independent Public Accountants
To the Stockholders of VSE Corporation:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of VSE
Corporation (a Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1995
and 1994, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders'
investment and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994, and
1993. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of VSE Corporation and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 1995 and 1994, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and
1993, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
As discussed in Notes 1 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements,
effective January 1, 1993, the Company changed its method of accounting for
income taxes.
/s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
Washington, D.C.,
March 1, 1996

Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share amounts)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
As of December 31,
1995
1994
------- ------<C>
<C>

<S>
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 711 $ 3,124
Accounts receivable, principally
U. S. Government, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16,367 10,922
Deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 822
1,491
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,068
858
------- ------Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,968 16,395
Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,498
3,078
Deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
0
248

Intangible assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,874
102
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,766
1,449
------- ------Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $29,106 $21,272
======= =======
Liabilities and Stockholders' Investment
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities . . . . . $ 3,204 $ 2,555
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,729
5,661
Dividends payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
74
69
------- ------Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,007
8,285
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,992
0
Deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 427
0
Deferred compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,127
886
------- ------Total liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,553
9,171
------- ------Commitments and contingencies (Notes 8 and 9)
Stockholders' investment:
Common stock, par value $.05 per share, authorized
5,000,000 shares; issued 1,954,044 in 1995 and
1,948,044 shares in 1994 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
98
97
Paid-in surplus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,338
8,247
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,402 20,042
Treasury stock, at cost (1,084,877 shares) . . . . . . . (16,285) (16,285)
------- ------Total stockholders' investment . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,553 12,101
------- ------Total liabilities and stockholders' investment . . . . $29,106 $21,272
======= =======
See accompanying notes
</TABLE>
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Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands, except share amounts)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
For the years ended December 31,
1995
1994
1993
------- ------- ------<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Revenues, principally from contracts . . . . . . $75,067 $65,581 $79,609
Costs and expenses of contracts . . . . . . . . 71,458 61,468
------- ------- ------Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,609 4,113
3,704
Selling, general and administrative expenses . .

763

1,577

Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
136
23
60
------- ------- ------Income before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . 2,710 2,513
Provision for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . 1,064
960
------- ------- ------Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle . . . . . . . . 1,646 1,553
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for
income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
0
0
284
------- ------- -------

75,905

1,751

1,893
734
1,159

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,646 $ 1,553 $ 1,443
======= ======= =======
Earnings per common share, based on weighted
average shares outstanding:
Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle . . . . . . . $ 1.90 $
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
for income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
0
0
------- ------- ------Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.90 $ 1.80
======= =======

1.80

$ 1.34

.33
$ 1.67
=======

Weighted average shares outstanding
866,398 863,167 863,167
======= ======= =======
See accompanying notes
</TABLE>
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Investment
(in thousands)
<TABLE>
Common Stock Paid-In Retained Treasury
Shares Amount Surplus Earnings Stock
------ ------ ------- -------- --------<S>
<C>
<C> <C>
<C>
<C>
Balance at December 31, 1992 . . 1,948
$97 $8,247 $17,564 $(16,285)
Net income for the year . . . .

--

--

--

1,443

--

Dividends declared ($.29). . . . ---(250)
-------- ------ ------- -------Balance at December 31, 1993 . . 1,948
97 8,247 18,757 (16,285)
Net income for the year . . . .

--

--

--

1,553

--

Dividends declared ($.305) . . . ---(268)
-------- ------ ------- -------Balance at December 31, 1994 . . 1,948
97 8,247 20,042 (16,285)
Net income for the year . . . .

--

Dividends declared ($.325) . . .

---

---

1,646
--

(286)

---

Issuance of stock . . . . . . .
6
1
91
--------- ------ ------- -------Balance at December 31, 1995 . . 1,954
$98 $8,338 $21,402 $(16,285)
=====
=== ====== ======= ========
See accompanying notes
</TABLE>
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>
For the years ended December 31,
1995 1994
1993

------ ------ -----<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,646 $1,553 $1,443
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . 1,326 1,142 1,320
Loss (Gain) on sale of property and
equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
(10)
26
Deferred compensation plan expense . . . . . . 188
125
207
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
0
0
(284)
Change in assets and liabilities, net of
acquisitions (Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,761) 4,241 (2,255)
Other current assets and noncurrent assets. . (457) (119)
(65)
Deferred taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 571 (232) (145)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other current
liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (385) (294)
348
Accrued expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (543)
34
338
Accrued taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (51) (370)
364
------ ------ -----Net cash provided by operations
(449) 6,070 1,297
------ ------ -----Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of CMstat, net of cash received. . . . (901)
0
0
Acquisition of Energetics, net of cash received . (3,531)
0
0
Purchase of property and equipment . . . . . . . . (2,139) (656) (1,095)
------ ------ -----Net cash used in investing activities
(6,571) (656) (1,095)
------ ------ -----Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from (payments of) revolving term
loan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,939 (2,683)
442
Payments of other long-term debt . . . . . . . . (212)
0
0
Cash dividends paid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (281) (264) (246)
Net proceeds from (payments of) deferred
compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69 (375) (151)
Issuance of common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . 92
0
0
------ ------ -----Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities
4,607 (3,322)
45
------ ------ -----Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,413) 2,092
247
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year. 3,124 1,032
785
------ ------ -----Cash and cash equivalents at end of year. . . . $ 711 $3,124 $1,032
====== ====== ======
See accompanying notes
</TABLE>
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include VSE Corporation and its wholly
owned subsidiaries ("VSE" or the "company"), CMstat Corporation ("CMstat"),
Energetics Incorporated ("Energetics"), Human Resource Systems, Inc. ("HRSI"),
Schmoldt Engineering Services ("Schmoldt Engineering"), VSE Corona, Inc.
("VCI"), VSE Services Corporation ("VSES"), and Value Systems Services ("VSS")
and BAV, unincorporated divisions of VSE. The company is engaged principally
in providing engineering, software development, testing, and management
services to the U. S. Government. Intercompany sales are principally at cost.
All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolida-

tion. Certain prior year balances have been reclassified for comparative
purposes.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents. In 1994, the company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 115 "Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities." The adoption was not
material to the company's financial position or results of operations.
The company has classified all debt securities as available-for-sale.
Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value with unrealized gains
and losses, net of tax, reported in a separate component of stockholders'
investment. Realized gains and losses are included in other income.
Available-for-sale securities at December 31, 1995 consisted of commercial
paper of $200 thousand. Available-for-sale securities at December 31, 1994
consisted of tax exempt master notes of $1.6 million, 90 day commercial paper
of $1.2 million, and overnight repurchase agreements of $883 thousand secured
by U. S. Government agency securities. The estimated fair value of these
securities approximated cost, and the amount of gross unrealized gains and
losses was not significant.
Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the company to concentration of
credit risk consist primarily of cash, cash equivalents and trade accounts
receivable. The company believes that concentrations of credit risk with
respect to trade accounts receivable are limited as they are primarily U. S.
Government receivables.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information for the three years ended
December 31, are presented below (in thousands):
1995
1994
1993
-------- -------- -------Interest payments . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 107 $ 44 $
Income tax payments . . . . . . . . . . .
841
1,566

39
528

Contract Revenues
Substantially all of the company's revenues result from contract services
performed for the U. S. Government or for contractors engaged in work for the
U. S. Government under a variety of contracts. Revenues on cost-type contracts
are recorded on the basis of recoverable costs incurred and fees earned.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Revenues on fixed price contracts are recorded as services are performed, using
the percentage-of-completion method of accounting, primarily based on contract
costs incurred to date compared with total estimated costs at completion.
Revenues on time and material contracts are recorded on the basis of hours
delivered plus other allowable direct costs as incurred.
The company provides for anticipated losses on contracts by a charge to income
during the period in which losses are first identified.
A substantial portion of the contract and administrative costs is subject to
audit by the Defense Contract Audit Agency. The company's indirect cost rates
have been audited and approved for 1992 and prior years. In the opinion of
management the audits of 1995, 1994 and 1993 will not result in adjustments, if
any, having a material adverse effect on the company's results of operations or
financial position.
The company's software revenues result from sales of software licenses and post
contract customer support. Revenue from the sale of licenses is recognized
upon delivery of the software. Revenue from the support is recognized ratably
over the period to which the support agreement relates.

Income Taxes
Effective January 1, 1993, the company implemented the provisions of SFAS No.
109, "Accounting for Income Taxes." SFAS No. 109 requires an asset and
liability approach to accounting for income taxes for financial statement
purposes. Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities represent
the tax effects of temporary differences between tax and financial accounting
bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using presently enacted tax
rates.
As a result of implementing the provisions of SFAS No. 109, the company
recognized a cumulative one-time tax benefit of $284 thousand or $.33 per share
as of January 1, 1993. This cumulative one-time tax benefit is the result of
(a) a difference in the tax and financial accounting basis associated with
certain real property, which difference was not previously recorded in the
company's consolidated financial statements, and (b) an adjustment to the
consolidated financial statements for previously recorded tax and financial
accounting differences based on presently enacted tax rates.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment (valued at cost) consisted of the following (in
thousands):
1995
1994
-------- -------Computer systems equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,291 $ 6,179
Furniture, fixtures, equipment, and other . . . . . 6,264
5,564
Buildings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
442
442
Land and land improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . .
385
385
-------- -------14,382
12,570
Less accumulated depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . (9,884) (9,492)
-------- -------$ 4,498 $ 3,078
======== ========
Depreciation and amortization expense for property and equipment was
approximately $1.1 million for 1995, $1.1 million for 1994 and $1.3 million for
1993. Depreciation of computer systems equipment is provided principally by
the
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double-declining method over periods of four to six years. Depreciation of
furniture and fixtures is provided principally by the straight-line method over
approximately nine years. Depreciation of all other property and equipment is
provided principally by the double-declining method over periods of three to
twenty years. Depreciation of buildings and land improvements is provided
principally by the straight-line method over approximately thirty years.
Nonoperating Net Income
Nonoperating net income included in selling, general and administrative
expenses, primarily interest income, was approximately $81 thousand, $128
thousand, and $19 thousand for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994, and
1993, respectively.
Deferred Compensation Plan
The company maintained a deferred compensation plan in 1993 that was
discontinued as of the end of 1993. The company established the Deferred
Supplemental Compensation Plan in 1994. Deferred compensation plan expense for
the plans for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993 was approximately
$188 thousand, $125 thousand and $207 thousand, respectively.
Included in other assets are assets of the plans which include equity
securities recorded at fair value and classified as available-for-sale. The
fair value of these securities was $940,131 and $40,002 as of December 31, 1995
and 1994, respectively. Unrealized gains/(losses) were $115,013 and ($9,998)

for 1995 and 1994, respectively. Changes in the assets of the plans are offset
in the company's financial statements by a corresponding change in the
liability to plan participants.
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Adoption of SFAS No. 121
In 1995, the company elected an early adoption of SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for
the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed
of". This adoption had no impact on the company.
(2) Acquisitions
On May 31, 1995 the company acquired all of the outstanding stock of CMstat, a
leading developer and supplier of commercial off-the-shelf configuration and
product data management solutions, for approximately $970 thousand in cash.
The acquisition was accounted for by the purchase method of accounting. The
results of CMstat's operations since May 31, 1995 are included in these
consolidated financial statements. The company has recorded approximately $1.2
million of identifiable intangible assets, $800 thousand of deferred taxes
related to the identifiable intangible assets and $400 thousand of goodwill.
Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets are being amortized by the
straight-line method generally over a period of ten years.
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On August 29, 1995 the company acquired all of the outstanding stock of
Energetics for approximately $3.7 million. Energetics assists government and
industry in conducting effective technology programs, primarily in the fields
of energy use and the environment. The acquisition was accounted for by the
purchase method of accounting. The results of Energetics' operations for the
period August 29, 1995 through December 31, 1995 are included in these
consolidated financial statements. The company has recorded approximately
$1.5 million of goodwill and $100 thousand of identifiable intangible assets.
Goodwill is being amortized by the straight-line method over fifteen years.
Identifiable intangible assets are being amortized over one year.
The following unaudited pro forma results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 1995 and 1994 assume the Energetics acquisition occurred as of the
beginning of the respective periods after giving effect to certain adjustments,
including amortization of identifiable intangible assets, increased interest
expense on acquisition debt, and related income tax effects. The pro forma
results have been prepared for comparative purposes only and do not purport
to be indicative of what would have occurred had the acquisition been made as
of those dates or of results which may occur in the future.
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
1995
1994
--------- --------Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
$ 82,619 $ 76,138
========= =========
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
$ 1,888 $ 1,733
========= =========
Net income per common share . . . . . . .
$ 2.18 $ 2.01
========= =========
(3) Accounts Receivable
The components of accounts receivable as of December 31, 1995 and 1994, were
as follows (in thousands):
1995
1994
--------- --------Billed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
$ 10,250 $ 6,131

Unbilled:
Retainages . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
691
450
Other (principally December work billed in
January) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
5,586
4,588
Less-Allowance for doubtful accounts . . .
(160)
(247)
--------- --------Total accounts receivable
$ 16,367 $ 10,922
========= =========
The "Unbilled: Other" included in accounts receivable are reported net of an
allowance for contract disallowances of approximately $1.3 million as of
December 31, 1995 and 1994. "Unbilled: Other" also includes certain costs which
are not reimbursable under current contracts, but which the company believes
will be reimbursable on execution of contract documentation or amendments
increasing funding. Amounts not presently reimbursable included in "Unbilled:
Other" were approximately $328 thousand and $700 thousand as of December 31,
1995, and 1994, respectively.
Contracts with the U. S. Government, primarily with the U. S. Department of
Defense, accounted for approximately 95% of revenues in 1995, 1994, and 1993.
These contracts were performed primarily in the engineering services industry.
One such contract with the U. S. Navy accounted for approximately 14% to 23% of
such revenues in 1993 through 1995.
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The company generally expects to collect all accounts receivable other than
retainages within one year. The carrying amount of the accounts receivable does
not significantly differ from fair value.
(4) Debt
Long-term debt as of December 31, 1995 and 1994 was as follows (in thousands):
1995
1994
----------Revolving term loan borrowings and commitments . . $4,939
Other debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
54
7
----------4,993
7
Less portion due within one year . . . . . . . . .
(1)
(7)
----------$4,992
$ 0
======
======

$

0

VSE has a revolving term loan agreement (the "Loan") with a syndicate of three
banks. Under the Loan, VSE can borrow up to $45 million, subject to a borrowing
formula based on billed receivables. Interest is charged at a prime-based rate
or at an optional LIBOR-based rate. A commitment fee is charged on the unused
portion of the loan commitment. The interest rates and the amount of the
commitment fee increase or decrease as VSE's leverage ratio increases or
decreases. The Loan contains collateral requirements by which company assets
are secured and restrictive covenants that include minimum tangible net worth
and profitability requirements and a limit on annual dividends. The termination
date of the Current Loan is May 31, 1997. Commitments above are for checks
outstanding at December 31, 1995 of approximately $800 thousand. The carrying
value of the debt is not significantly different from fair value.
Other debt is related to debt acquired in the acquisitions of CMstat and
Energetics.
(5) Accrued Expenses
The components of accrued expenses as of December 31, 1995 and 1994, were as
follows (in thousands):
1995
1994
--------------Accrued salaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,456
$ 1,480

Accrued vacation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,460
1,270
Estimated future losses on fixed price and
time and material contracts . . . . . . . . . .
753
1,122
Other accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,060
1,789
--------------Total accrued expenses
$ 5,729
$ 5,661
========
========
(6) Benefit Plans
VSE established an ESOP/401(k) plan in 1984. Under the provisions of the ESOP,
the company and certain of its subsidiaries make contributions into a trust
which purchases VSE stock on behalf of employees who meet certain age and
service requirements and are employed at the end of the plan year.
Contributions at the rate of up to 2% of eligible employee compensation may be
made at the discretion of the board of directors. Contributions are allocated,
subject to a vesting schedule, pro rata based on eligible employee compensation.
The plan expense for
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VSE and certain of its subsidiaries for 1995, 1994, and 1993, was approximately
$449 thousand, $490 thousand, and $531 thousand, respectively. There are no
prior service costs under any VSE retirement plans.
The ESOP/401(k) plan owned 343,893 shares and 345,309 shares as of December 31,
1995 and 1994, respectively, which receive dividend payments and are included in
the weighted average shares for earnings per share calculations.
Energetics maintains a profit sharing plan for employees. All employees who
have completed two years of service are members of the profit sharing plan. At
its discretion, Energetics may make contributions to the plan. The plan expense
from August 29, 1995 to December 31, 1995 was approximately $28 thousand.
Schmoldt Engineering maintains a qualified defined contribution profit sharing
plan for employees who elect to become participants and who meet certain
eligibility requirements. At its discretion, Schmoldt Engineering may make
contributions to the plan in an amount of up to 15% of participant compensation.
The plan expense for 1995 was $0, and approximately $15 thousand and $12
thousand for 1994 and 1993, respectively.
In February 1996, the company announced that VSE's the board of directors had
ratified, subject to shareholder approval, a Stock Option Plan for certain
eligible employees and directors. Stock options may be granted from time to
time up to 109,479 shares of the aggregate of common stock of the company. The
shares would vest over a period from one to three years and the maximum term of
the options granted would be five years.
(7) Income Taxes
The company files consolidated federal income tax returns with all of its
subsidiaries. The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows
(in thousands):
1995
1994
1993
Current
------ ------ -----Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 449 $ 948 $ 688
State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 104
233
150
------ ------ -----553
1,181
838
Deferred Provision (Benefit) - resulting from:
Deferred revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . 360
88
(154)
Other timing differences . . . . . . . . . 140
(16)
82
Accelerated depreciation . . . . . . . . . 95
(53)
(57)
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . 90
41
(2)
Bad debt expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34
0
0
Retainages not taxed until billed . . . . . 14
(94)
165
Allowance for contract and other
disallowances . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
1
(239)
(103)
Software development . . . . . . . . . . . (15)
0
0

Funded Backlog . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (18)
0
0
Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . (30)
0
0
Deferred compensation . . . . . . . . . . . (160)
52
(35)
------ ------ -----Income tax provision
$1,064 $ 960 $ 734
====== ====== ======
The differences between the amounts of tax computed at the federal statutory
rate of 34% and the provisions for income taxes for 1995, 1994, and 1993 are as
follows (in thousands):
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1995
1994
1993
------ ------ -----Tax at statutory federal income tax rate . . . $ 922 $ 854 $ 646
Increases (Decreases) in tax resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit . . 133
127
87
Permanent differences for tax . . . . . . .
9
0
5
Federal and state tax rate adjustments . .
0
(21)
0
Other, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
0
0
(4)
------ ------ -----Provision for income taxes
$1,064 $ 960 $ 734
====== ====== ======
The company's deferred tax assets as of December 31, 1995 and 1994, which
represent the tax effects of temporary differences between tax and financial
accounting bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using presently
enacted tax rates, are as follows (in thousands):
1995
1994
------ ------Current deferred tax assets . . . . . . . $ 1,888 $ 2,112
Current deferred tax liabilities . . . . . (1,066)
(621)
------- ------Net current deferred tax assets . . . . . 822
1,491
------- ------Noncurrent deferred tax assets . . . . . . 833
740
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilities . . . . (1,210)
(442)
Valuation allowance . . . . . . . . . . . . (50)
(50)
------- ------Net noncurrent deferred tax (liabilities)
assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (427)
248
------- ------Net deferred tax assets
$ 395 $ 1,739
======= =======
In 1993, the tax effect of certain differences between tax and book bases not
previously recorded were recorded. Further, a valuation allowance, which is
provided when it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax
asset will not be realized, was established for the deferred tax asset
associated with certain real property because of the uncertainty that the
deferred tax asset will be fully realized. Based on the company's taxable
income in prior years, the company expects to realize the net deferred tax asset
currently recorded.
The tax effects of temporary differences representing deferred tax assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 1995 and 1994, are as follows (in thousands):
1995
1994
------------Deferred compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,028
$ 886
Allowance for contract and other disallowances .
488
489
Accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
366
449
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
262
432
Bad debt expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
65
99
Accelerated depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . (147)
(65)
Retainages not taxed until billed. . . . . . . . (191)
(177)
Deferred revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (684)
(324)
Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (742)
0
-------------

445
1,789
Valuation allowance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(50)
(50)
------------Net deferred tax assets
$ 395
$ 1,739
=======
=======
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(8) Commitments and Contingencies
Leases
The principal facilities of the company and its subsidiaries are generally
rented under operating leases for periods of one to ten years. The company and
its subsidiaries also lease equipment generally under noncancelable operating
leases for periods of one to two years. Rent expense for 1995, 1994, and 1993,
was approximately $2.2 million, $2.0 million, and $2.2 million, respectively,
which was net of sublease income of approximately $272 thousand, $331 thousand,
and $390 thousand, respectively. The future minimum annual rental required under
leases having remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year, net of
noncancelable sublease income, will approximate $2 million in 1996, $1.8 million
in 1997, $1.2 million in 1998, $840 thousand in 1999, and $955 thousand in 2000
and $1.3 million thereafter.
Note Guarantee
The company is a guarantor of an Industrial Development Revenue Note assumed by
Alexandria Tech Center II/Starr Associates, a Virginia general partnership of
which Starr Management Corporation, a former VSE subsidiary ("Starr"), is a 50%
partner. As of December 31, 1995, the outstanding principal of the note was
$2.6 million. The note evidences loan proceeds that were used to finance the
construction of an office building owned by the partnership for a period of
ten years and has a one year lease for an additional 16% of the building. The
ten year lease period expires in July 1997.
Starr has agreed to indemnify the company for any liabilities resulting from any
guarantee given by VSE on behalf of Starr.
Litigation
During June 1993 a settlement was reached among VSE, a bank used by VSE, and a
third party claimant to resolve a potential claim against VSE with respect to a
letter of credit issued in 1988. VSE's charge to income before tax in 1993 for
the settlement was approximately $300 thousand.
The company and its subsidiaries have, in the normal course of business, certain
other claims against them and against other parties. In the opinion of
management, the resolution of these claims will not have a material adverse
effect on the company's results of operations or financial position.
(9) Subsequent Event - Sale of Subsidiary Stock
On February 7, 1996, the company sold its wholly owned subsidiary Schmoldt
Engineering. Schmoldt Engineering was purchased by SESCO, Inc., an Oklahoma
corporation formed by certain officers and employees of Schmoldt Engineering.
The company received approximately $400 thousand in gross proceeds in the form
of cash of $100 thousand and notes of approximately $300 thousand secured
principally by the equipment and rolling stock of Schmoldt Engineering. The
company will recognize a pretax loss of approximately $300 thousand in the
first quarter of fiscal 1996.

Selected Quarterly Data
Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudited)
(in thousands, except earnings per share)
<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

1995 Quarters
1st
2nd
3rd
4th
------- ------- ------- ------<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $16,155 $17,110 $21,204 $20,598
======= ======= ======= =======
Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 878 $ 423 $ 1,599 $ 709
======= ======= ======= =======
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 414 $ 297 $ 459 $ 476
======= ======= ======= =======
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
863
865
869
869
======= ======= ======= =======
Earnings per common share:
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ .48 $ .34 $ .53 $ .55
======= ======= ======= =======

1994 Quarters
1st
2nd
3rd
4th
------- ------- ------- ------<S>
<C>
<C>
<C>
<C>
Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $17,479 $16,290 $15,778 $16,034
======= ======= ======= =======
Gross profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 929 $ 625 $ 1,436 $ 1,123
======= ======= ======= =======
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 353 $ 354 $ 415 $ 431
======= ======= ======= =======
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
863
863
863
863
======= ======= ======= =======
Earnings per common share:
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ .41 $ .41 $ .48 $ .50
======= ======= ======= =======
</TABLE>
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Corporate Profile
VSE Corporation is a professional services company established in 1959. VSE
provides diversified engineering, development, testing, maintenance and
management services and products to maintain and modernize equipment and
systems, principally to agencies of the U. S. Government and to other prime
contractors. The company's subsidiaries and divisions include BAV, CMstat
Corporation, Energetics Incorporated, Human Resource Systems, Inc., VSE

Corona, Inc., VSE Services Corporation, Value Systems Services, and from July
1990 through February 6, 1996, Schmoldt Engineering Services Company. The
company provides products and services to customers from more than 20 locations
across the United States.
Corporate Address
The company's principal executive offices are located at 2550 Huntington Avenue,
Alexandria, Virginia 22303-1499. The telephone number is (703) 960-4600. The
telecopier number is (703) 960-2688. The Company's Worldwide Web address is
http://www.vsecorp.com.
Annual Meeting of Stockholders
The Annual Meeting of Stockholders is expected to be held on May 4, 1996, at
10:00 a.m., at the Value Engineering Building, 2550 Huntington Avenue,
Alexandria, Virginia 22303-1499.
Stockholder Inquiries
Inquiries concerning stock ownership, dividends, and stockholder changes of
address may be directed to Registrar and Transfer Company, 10 Commerce Drive,
Cranford, New Jersey 07016, (1-800-346-6084) or to the company at 2550
Huntington Avenue, Alexandria, Virginia 22303-1499, Attention: Corporate
Secretary.
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EXHIBIT IV
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of January 1,
1996, by and between VSE Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Employer"), and
Richard B. McFarland ("Employee");
WHEREAS, Employee currently is employed by Employer as a member of
Employer's board of directors ("the Board") and Employer's president and chief
operating officer;
WHEREAS, Employee has rendered many years of good and valuable service
to the Employer and has contributed greatly to Employer's growth and success;
WHEREAS, Employer wishes to induce Employee to remain in Employer s
employ to prevent the significant loss which Employer would incur if Employee
were to leave and to enter the employment of a competitor;
WHEREAS, in the current business climate of takeovers and acquisitions,
Employee may be concerned about the continuation of his employment and his
status and responsibilities if a Change in Control (as defined below) occurs,
and Employer is concerned that Employee may be approached by others with
employment opportunities;
WHEREAS, Employer desires to ensure that, if a Change in Control appears
possible, Employee will be in a secure position from which he can objectively
engage in any potential deliberations or negotiations respecting such Change
in Control without fear of any direct or implied threat to his employment,
status and responsibilities; and
WHEREAS, Employee desires to have the foregoing assurances.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained
herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the adequacy of which
is hereby acknowledged, Employer and Employee, each intending to be legally
bound, agree as follows:
1. Term
The term of Employee's employment hereunder shall commence on the
date hereof and shall continue until January 1, 1999, except as otherwise
provided in Section 7. If the term of Employee's employment hereunder shall
have continued until January 1, 1999, thereafter, such term of Employee's
employment hereunder shall be deemed to be renewed automatically, on the same
terms and conditions contained herein, for successive periods of one year
each, unless and until either Employer or Employee, at least 90 days prior to
the expiration of the original term or any such extended term, shall give
written notice to the other of his or its intention not to renew the term of
Employee's employment hereunder. All references herein to the "Term" refer to
the original term of Employee's employment hereunder and all extensions
thereof.
2. Duties
(a) Offices
During the Term, Employee shall serve as a director of
Employer and as Employer's president and chief operating officer, and the
Board shall renominate Employee as a director of Employer and reelect Employee
as Employer's president and chief operating officer, and Employee shall
perform the duties of those positions, as assigned to him by the Board.
Employer agrees that Employee will be assigned only duties of the type, nature
and dignity normally assigned to the chief operating officer of a corporation
of the size, stature and nature of Employer. During the Term, Employee shall
have, at a minimum, the same perquisites of office as he had on the date
hereof, and he shall report directly to the Employer's chief executive
officer.
(b) Full-Time Basis

During the Term, Employee shall devote, on a full-time
basis, his services, skills and abilities to his employment hereunder,
excepting periods of vacation, illness or Disability (as defined below), and
excepting any pursuits which do not materially interfere with his duties
hereunder or present a conflict of interest with the interests of Employer or
of any subsidiary thereof ("Subsidiary").
3. Compensation
(a)

Salary

During the Term, as compensation for services rendered by
Employee hereunder, Employer shall pay to Employee a base salary at the rate
of not less than $175,000 per annum, payable in installments in accordance
with Employer's policy governing salary payments to senior officers generally
("Base Salary"). In January of every year during the Term, Employee's
compensation, including Base Salary, will be subject to the Board's review,
provided that, the Base Salary shall not be less than the rate of $175,000 per
annum.
(b) Performance Bonus
Except as otherwise provided in Section 7, in addition to
the Base Salary, Employee shall be eligible for an annual performance bonus as
determined by the Board or its Compensation Committee ("Performance Bonus").
Any Performance Bonus payable pursuant to this Section 3(b) shall be paid
within 30 days after the end of the fiscal period to which such Performance
Bonus relates.
(c) Other Compensation Plans or Arrangements
During the Term, Employee shall also be eligible to
participate in all other currently existing or subsequently implemented
compensation or benefit plans or arrangements available generally to other
officers or senior officers of Employer, including Employer's Deferred
Supplemental Compensation Plan, ESOP/401(k), and any stock option, stock
purchase or similar stock plans or arrangements.
(d) Tax Withholdings
Employer shall withhold from Employee's compensation
hereunder and pay over to the appropriate governmental agencies all payroll
taxes, including income, social security, and unemployment compensation taxes,
required by the federal, state and local governments with jurisdiction over
Employer.
4. Benefits
During the Term, Employee shall be entitled to such comparable
fringe benefits and perquisites as may be provided to any or all of Employer's
senior officers pursuant to policies established from time to time by the
Board. These fringe benefits and perquisites shall include holidays, group
health insurance, short term and long term disability insurance and life
insurance, vehicle allowances, and supplemental executive health care
benefits. Also, during the Term, Employee shall be entitled (a) to 30 days
paid leave per annum and to accrue unused leave from year to year and (b) to
be reimbursed for the costs of physical examinations up to $1,000 per annum.
5. Expenses and Other Perquisites
Employer shall reimburse Employee for all reasonable and proper
business expenses incurred by him in the performance during the Term of his
duties hereunder, in accordance with Employer's customary practices for senior
officers, and provided such business expenses are reasonably documented.
Also, during the Term, Employer shall continue to provide Employee with an
office and suitable office fixtures, telephone services, and secretarial
assistance of a nature appropriate to Employee's position and status.
6. Exclusive Services, Confidential Information, Business Opportunities
and Non-Solicitation
(a) Exclusive Services

(i) During the Term, Employee shall at all times devote his fulltime attention, energies, efforts and skills to Employer's business and shall
not, directly or indirectly, engage in any other business activity, whether or
not for profit, gain or other pecuniary advantages, without the Board's written
consent, provided that such prior consent shall not be required with respect
to (1) business interests that neither compete with Employer or any
Subsidiaries nor interfere with Employee's duties and obligations hereunder
and (2) Employee's charitable, eleemosynary, philanthropic or professional
association activities.
(ii) During the Term, Employee shall not, without the
Board's prior written consent, directly or indirectly, either as an officer,
director, employee, agent, advisor, consultant, principal, stockholder,
partner, owner or in any other capacity, on his own behalf or otherwise, in
any way engage in, represent, be connected with or have a financial interest
in, any business which is, or to his knowledge, is about to become, engaged in
the business of providing engineering, management, energy or environmental
services to the United States Government or any department, agency, or
instrumentality thereof or any state or local governmental agency or to any
person, corporation or other entity (collectively a "Person") with which
Employer or any Subsidiary is currently or has previously done business or any
subsequent line of business developed by Employee or any Subsidiary during the
Term. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Employee shall be permitted to own
passive investments in publicly held companies provided that such investments
do not exceed five percent of any such company's outstanding equity.
(b) Confidential Information
During the Term and for the first 24 consecutive months
after the termination of the Term, Employee shall not disclose or use,
directly or indirectly, any Confidential Information (as defined below). For
the purposes of this Agreement, "Confidential Information" shall mean all
information disclosed to Employee, or known by him as a consequence of or
through his employment with Employer or any Subsidiary, where such information
is not generally known in the trade or industry or was regarded or treated as
confidential by Employer or any Subsidiary, and where such information refers
or relates in any manner whatsoever to the business activities, processes,
services or products of Employer or its Subsidiaries. Confidential
Information shall include business and development plans (whether
contemplated, initiated or completed), information with respect to the
development of technical and management services, business contacts, methods
of operation, results of analysis, business forecasts, financial data, costs,
revenues, and similar information. Upon termination of Term, Employee shall
immediately return to Employer all of property of Employer or any Subsidiary
and Confidential Information which is in tangible form, and all copies thereof.
(c) Business Opportunities
( i ) During the Term, Employee shall promptly disclose to
Employer each business opportunity of a type which, based upon its prospects
and relationship to the existing businesses of Employer or any Subsidiary,
Employer or any Subsidiary might reasonably consider pursuing. Upon
termination of the Term, regardless of the circumstances thereof, Employer
shall have the exclusive right to participate in or undertake any such
opportunity on its own behalf without any involvement of Employee.
(ii) During the Term, Employee shall refrain from engaging
in any activity, practice or act which conflicts with, or has the potential to
conflict with, the interests of Employer or its Subsidiaries, and he shall
avoid any acts or omissions which are disloyal to, or competitive with
Employer or its Subsidiaries.
(d) Non-Solicitation of Executives
During the Term and for the first 24 consecutive months
after termination of the Term , Employee shall not, except in the course of
his duties hereunder, directly or indirectly, induce or attempt to induce or
otherwise counsel, advise, ask or encourage any person to leave the employ of
Employer or any Subsidiary, or solicit or offer employment to any person who
was employed by Employer or any Subsidiary at any time during the twelve-month
period preceding the solicitation or offer.
(e) Covenant Not To Compete

(i) If Employee voluntarily terminates the Term, or if
Employer terminates the Term for Cause (as defined below), Employee shall not,
during the first 24 consecutive months following such termination, engage in
competition with Employer or any Subsidiary, or solicit, from any person or
entity who purchased any then existing product or service from Employer or any
Subsidiary during his employment hereunder, the purchase of any then existing
product or service in competition with then existing products or services of
Employer or any Subsidiary.
(ii) For purposes of this Agreement, Employee shall be
deemed to engage in competition with Employer if he shall directly or
indirectly, either individually or as a stockholder, director, officer,
partner, consultant, owner, employee, agent, or in any other capacity, consult
with or otherwise assist any person or entity engaged in providing technical
and management services to any person or entity which Employer or any
Subsidiary, during the Term, has developed or is working to develop.
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if Employer is in material
breach of this Agreement, the provisions of this Section 6 shall not apply.
(f) Employee Acknowledgment
Employee hereby agrees and acknowledges that the
restrictions imposed upon him by the provisions of this Section 6 are fair and
reasonable considering the nature of Employer's business, and are reasonably
required for Employer's protection.
(g) Invalidity
If a court of competent jurisdiction or an arbitrator shall
declare any provision or restriction contained in this Section 6 as
unenforceable or void, the provisions of this Section 6 shall remain in full
force and effect to the extent not so declared to be unenforceable or void,
and the court may modify the invalid provision to make it enforceable to the
maximum extent permitted by law.
(h) Specific Performance
Employee agrees that if he breaches any of the provisions of
this Section 6, the remedies available at law to Employer would be inadequate
and in lieu thereof, or in addition thereto, Employer shall be entitled to
appropriate equitable remedies, including specific performance and injunctive
relief. Employee agrees not to enter into any agreement, either written or
oral, which may conflict with this Agreement, and Employee authorizes Employer
to make known the terms of Sections 6 and 7 hereof to any Person, including
future employers of Employee.
7. Termination
(a) By Employer
(i) Termination for Cause
Employer may for Cause (as defined below) terminate
the Term at any time by written notice to Employee. For purposes of this
Agreement, the term "Cause" shall mean any one or more of the following: (1)
conduct by Employee which is materially illegal or fraudulent; (2) the breach
or violation by Employee of any of the material provisions of this Agreement,
provided that Employee must first be given notice by the Board of the alleged
breach or violation and 30 days to cure said alleged breach or violation; (3)
Employee's use of illegal drugs or abuse of alcohol or authorized drugs which
impairs Employee's ability to perform his duties hereunder, provided that
Employee must be given notice by the Board of such impairment and 60 days to
cure the impairment; (4) Employee's knowing and willful neglect of duties or
negligence in the performance of his duties which materially affects
Employer's or any Subsidiary's business, provided that Employee must first be
given notice by the Board of such alleged neglect or negligence and 30 days to
cure said alleged neglect or negligence. If a termination occurs pursuant to
clause (1) above, the date on which the Term is terminated (the "Termination
Date") shall be the date Employee receives notice of termination and, if a
termination occurs pursuant to clauses (2), (3) or (4) above, the Termination
Date shall be the date on which the specified cure period expires. In any
event, as of the Termination Date (in the absence of satisfying the alleged

breach or violation within the applicable cure period), Employee shall be
relieved of all of his duties hereunder and Employee shall not be entitled to
the accrual or provision of any compensation or benefit, after the Termination
Date but Employee shall be entitled to the provision of all compensation and
other benefits that shall have accrued as of the Termination Date, including
Base Salary, Performance Bonuses, paid leave benefits, Deferred Compensation
Units, Deferred Supplemental Compensation, and reimbursement of incurred
business expenses.
(ii) Termination Without Cause
Employer may, in its sole discretion, without Cause,
terminate the Term at any time by providing Employee with (a) 60 days' prior
notice thereof and (b) on or prior to the Termination Date, a lump sum
severance compensation payment equal to the total amount of Employee's Base
Salary payable for one (1) year hereunder, based upon the amount in effect as
of the effective Termination Date. In such event, Employee shall not be
entitled to the accrual or provision of any other compensation or benefit
after the Termination Date other than (a) the medical and hospitalization
benefits for the first 18 months after the Termination Date; (b) the provision
of all compensation and other benefits that shall have accrued as of the
Termination Date, including Base Salary, Performance Bonus, paid leave
benefits, Deferred Compensation Units, Deferred Supplemental Compensation and
reimbursements of incurred expenses; and (c) all stock options or similar
rights to acquire capital stock granted by Employer to Employee shall
automatically become vested and exercisable in whole or in part.
(b) Death or Disability
The Term shall be terminated immediately and automatically
upon Employee's death or "Disability." The term "Disability" shall mean
Employee's inability to perform all of the essential functions of his
position hereunder for a period of 26 consecutive weeks or for an aggregate of
150 work days during any 12-month period by reason of illness, accident or any
other physical or mental incapacity, as may be permitted by applicable law.
Employee's capability to continue performance of Employee's duties hereunder
shall be determined by a panel composed of two independent medical doctors
appointed by the Board and one appointed by the Employee or his designated
representative. If the panel is unable to reach a decision the matter will be
referred to arbitration in accordance with Section 8. In the event of
Employee's death or Disability for any period of six consecutive months,
Employee (or his designated beneficiary) will be paid his Base Salary then in
effect for one full year following the date of death or disability.
(c) By Employee
(i) Employee may, in his sole discretion, without cause,
terminate the Term at any time upon 90 days' written notice to Employer. If
Employee exercises such termination right, Employer may, at its option, at any
time after receiving such notice from Employee, relieve him of his duties and
terminate the Term at any time prior to the expiration of said notice period.
If the Term is terminated by Employee or Employer pursuant to this Section
7(c)( i ), Employee shall not be entitled to any further Base Salary or the
accrual or provision of any compensation or benefits after the Termination
Date, including, without limitation, any of the medical and hospitalization
benefits described in Section 7(a)(ii)(1).
(ii) If, during the Term, a Change of Control (as defined
below) occurs and, without his consent, Employee is assigned duties materially
inconsistent with his position and status with Employer as of the date hereof,
Employee may, in his sole discretion, terminate the Term upon 30 days' notice
of Employer. If Employee exercises such termination right, Employer may, at
its option, at any time after receiving such notice from Employee, relieve him
of his duties hereunder and terminate the Term at any time prior to the
expiration of said notice period. If this Agreement is terminated by Employee
or Employer pursuant to this Section 7(c)(ii), Employee shall be entitled (a)
to receive on or prior to the Termination Date a lump sum severance
compensation payment equal to two (2) times the total amount of Employee s
Base Salary payable hereunder, based on the amount in effect as of the
Termination Date; (b) the medical and hospitalization benefits and all
compensation and other benefits that shall have accrued as of the Termination
Date, as described in Section 7(a)(ii)(1); and (c) to the automatic vesting
and exercisability in whole or in part of all stock options or similar rights

to acquire capital stock granted by Employer to Employee; provided that
Employee shall not be entitled, after the Termination Date to the accrual or
provision of any other compensation or benefits payable hereunder, including
the Performance Bonus.
(d) Change of Control
For purposes of this Section 7, a "Change of Control" shall
be deemed to have occurred upon the happening of any of the following events:
( i ) any "person", including a "group," as such terms as defined in Sections
13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the
rules promulgated thereunder (collectively the "Exchange Act"), other than a
trustee or other fiduciary holding voting securities of Employer ("Voting
Securities") under any Employer-sponsored benefit plan, becomes the beneficial
owner, as defined under the Exchange Act, directly or indirectly, whether by
purchase or acquisition or agreement to act in concert or otherwise, of 30% or
more of the outstanding Voting Securities; (ii) a cash tender or exchange
offer is completed for such amount of Voting Securities which, together with
the Voting Securities then beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by the
offeror (and affiliates thereof) constitutes 40% or more of the outstanding
Voting Securities; (iii) except in the case of a merger or consolidation in
which (a) Employer is the surviving corporation and (b) the holders of Voting
Securities immediately prior to such merger or consolidation beneficially own,
directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the outstanding Voting Securities
immediately after such merger or consolidation (there being excluded from the
number of Voting Securities held by such holders, but not from the outstanding
Voting Securities, any Voting Securities received by affiliates of the other
constituent corporation(s) in the merger or consolidation in exchange for
stock of such other corporation), Employer's shareholders approve an agreement
to merge, consolidate, liquidate, or sell all or substantially all of
Employer's assets; or (iv) two or more directors are elected to the Board
without having previously been nominated and approved by the members of the
Board incumbent on the day immediately preceding such election. For purposes
of this Section 7, "affiliate" of a person or another entity shall mean a
person or other entity that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by,
or is under common control with the person or other entity specified.
(e) No Duty to Mitigate
If Employee is entitled to the compensation and other
benefits provided under Sections 7(a)(ii) or (c)(ii), Employee shall have no
obligation to seek employment to mitigate his damages hereunder.
8. Arbitration
Whenever a dispute arises between the parties concerning this
Agreement or any of the obligations hereunder, or Employee's employment
generally, Employer and Employee shall use their best efforts to resolve the
dispute by mutual agreement. If any dispute cannot be resolved by Employer
and Employee, it shall be submitted to arbitration to the exclusion of all
other avenues of relief and adjudicated pursuant to the American Arbitration
Association's Rules for Employment Dispute Resolution then in effect. The
decision of the arbitrator must be in writing and shall be final and binding
on the parties, and judgment may be entered on the arbitrator's award in any
court having jurisdiction thereof. The arbitrator's authority in granting
relief to Employee shall be limited to an award of compensation, benefits and
unreimbursed expenses as described in Sections 3, 4, and 5 above, and to the
release of Employee from the provisions of Section 6 and the arbitrator shall
have no authority to award other types of damages or relief to Employee,
including consequential or punitive damages. The arbitrator shall also have
no authority to award consequential or punitive damages to Employer for
violations of this Agreement by Employee. The expenses of the arbitration
shall be borne by the losing party to the arbitration and the prevailing party
shall be entitled to recover from the losing party all of its or his own costs
and attorneys fees with respect to the arbitration. Nothing in this Section
8 shall be construed to derogate Employer's rights to seek legal and equitable
relief in a court of competent jurisdiction as contemplated by Section 6(h).
9. Non-Waiver
It is understood and agreed that one party's failure at any time
to require the performance by the other party of any of the terms, provisions,
covenants or conditions hereof shall in no way affect the first party's right

thereafter to enforce the same, nor shall the waiver by either party of the
breach of any term, provision, covenant or condition hereof be taken or held
to be a waiver of any succeeding breach.
10. Severability
If any provision of this Agreement conflicts with the law under
which this Agreement is to be construed, or if any such provision is held
invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or any
arbitrator, such provision shall be deleted from this Agreement and the
Agreement shall be construed to give full effect to the remaining provision
thereof.
11. Survivability
Unless otherwise provided herein, upon termination of the Term,
the provisions of Sections 6(b), (d) and (e) shall nevertheless remain in full
force and effect.
12. Governing Law
This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed
according to the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, without regard to the
conflict of law provisions thereof.
13. Construction
The paragraph headings and captions contained in this Agreement
are for convenience only and shall not be construed to define, limit or affect
the scope or meaning of the provisions hereof. All references herein to
Sections shall be deemed to refer to Sections of this Agreement.
14. Entire Agreement
This Agreement contains and represents the entire agreement of
Employer and Employee and supersedes all prior agreements, representations or
understandings, oral or written, express or implied with respect to the
subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be modified or amended in any
way unless in a writing signed by each of Employer and Employee. No
representation, promise or inducement has been made by either Employer or
Employee that is not embodied in this Agreement, and neither Employer nor
Employee shall be bound by or liable for any alleged representation, promise
or inducement not specifically set forth herein.
15. Assignability
Neither this Agreement nor any rights or obligations of Employer
or Employee hereunder may be assigned by Employer or Employee without the
other party's prior written consent. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement
shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Employer and Employee and
their heirs, successors and assigns.
16. Notices
All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing
and shall be deemed properly given if delivered personally or sent by
certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or
sent by telegram, telelex , telecopy or similar form of telecommunication,
and shall be deemed to have been given when received. Any such notice or
communication shall be addressed:
(a) if to Employer, to Chief Financial Officer, 2550 Huntington
Avenue, Alexandria, Virginia 22303-1499 with a copy to: Carter Strong,
Esquire, Arent Fox Kintner Plotkin & Kahn, 1050 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20036-5339 or (b) if to Employee, to his last known home
address on file with Employer, or to such other address as Employer or
Employee shall have furnished to the other in writing.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this
Agreement, to be effective as of the day and year first above written.

VSE CORPORATION
a Delaware corporation
Date:12/8/95

By:/s/ C. S. WEBER
C. S. Weber,
Chief Financial Officer

Date:12/8/95

/s/ RICHARD B. MCFARLAND
Richard B. McFarland
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EXHIBIT V
RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
VSE CORPORATION
VSE Corporation (the "Corporation"), originally incorporated under
the name Value Engineering Company, whose original Certificate of Incorporation
was filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on January 22, 1959, hereby
restates its Certificate of Incorporation in its entirety and certifies that
at a meeting of the Corporation's board of directors this Restated Certificate
of Incorporation was declared advisable and duly adopted by the Corporation's
directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 245 of the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. This Restated Certificate of
Incorporation only restates and integrates and does not further amend the
Corporation's Certificate of Incorporation as heretofore amended or
supplemented and there is no discrepancy between those provisions as so
amended or supplemented and the provisions of this Restated Certificate of
Incorporation.
FIRST. The name of the corporation is VSE CORPORATION.
SECOND. The registered office of the corporation within the State
of Delaware is Three Christina Centre, 201 N. Walnut Street, City of Wilmington
19801, County of New Castle. The registered agent of the Corporation within
the State of Delaware is The Company Corporation, Three Christina Centre, 201
N. Walnut Street, City of Wilmington 19801, County of New Castle, the business
office of which is identical with the registered office of the Corporation.
THIRD. The nature of the business, or objects or purposes to be
transacted, promoted or carried on are:
To carry on the business of research, experimentation, invention,
discovery, testing, development, and utilization of processes and
methods, or improvements thereto, in all the arts and sciences; including
the conception, development, execution and completion of special
scientific and development projects, on its own behalf and on behalf of
any other person, firm, association, corporation, public or private, or
the Government of the United States of America, or any foreign government,
or any political subdivision thereof, or any governmental agency, and in
this connection to operate testing stations as may be necessary or
advisable.
To construct, buy, sell, lease, license, maintain and operate
laboratories and laboratory facilities of all kinds; to carry on and
make tests, experiments, analyses and to do research work and to perform
analytical, experimental and research services of all kinds whether of a
scientific nature or otherwise, and to do any and all acts and transact
any and all business which shall or may be or become incidental to or
arise out of or be connected with such business, or any part thereof.

To engage in and carry on the business of consultants; to construct,
supervise the construction of, install, maintain, own, operate, lease,
repair, service, and generally deal in and deal with electronic,
electrical, electro-mechanical and mechanical apparatus, devices,
systems, processes, machinery, supplies and any other articles or
materials used or capable of being used in connection with any of the
foregoing.
To acquire by purchase, assignment, grant, license or otherwise, to
apply for, secure, lease or in any manner obtain, to develop, hold, own,
use, exploit, operate, enjoy and introduce, to sell, assign, lease,
mortgage, pledge, grant licenses and rights of all kinds in respect of,
or otherwise dispose of, and generally to deal in and with and turn to
account for any or all purposes, either for itself or as nominee or
agent for others:
(1) Any and all inventions, devices, processes, discoveries and
formulae, and improvements and modifications thereof and rights
and interests therein;
(2) Any and all letters patent or applications for letters patent
of the United States of America or of any other country, state,
locality or authority, and any and all rights, interests and
privileges connected therewith or incidental or appertaining
thereto.
To manufacture, purchase, sell and generally trade and deal in and
with any article, product or commodity produced as the result of or
through the use of any such inventions, devices, processes, discoveries,
formulae and improvements and modifications thereof, or the like, or any
articles, products, commodities, supplies and materials used or suitable
to be used in connection therewith or in any manner applicable or
incidental thereto; to grant licenses, sub-licenses, rights, interests
and privileges in respect of any of the foregoing, and to supervise or
otherwise exercise such control over its licensees or grantees and the
business conducted by them, as may be agreed upon in its contracts or
agreements with such licensees or grantees for the protection of its
rights and interest therein, and to secure to it the payment of agreed
royalties or other considerations.
To manufacture, purchase or otherwise acquire, invest in, own,
mortgage, pledge, sell, assign and transfer or otherwise dispose of, trade,
deal in and deal with goods, wares and merchandise and personal property of
every class and description.
To acquire, and pay for in cash, stock or bonds of this corporation or
otherwise, the good will, rights, assets and property, and to undertake
or assume the whole or any part of the obligations or liabilities of any
person, firm, association or corporation.
To acquire by purchase, subscription or otherwise, and to receive,
hold, own, guarantee, sell, assign, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge
or otherwise dispose of or deal in and with any of the shares of the
capital stock, or any voting trust certificates in respect of the shares
of capital stock, scrip, warrants, rights, bonds, debentures, notes,
trust, receipts, and other securities, obligations, choses in action and
evidences of indebtedness or interest issued or created by any
corporations, joint stock companies, syndicates, associations, firms,
trusts or persons, public or private, or by the Government of the United
States of America, or by any foreign government, or by any state,
territory, province, municipality or other political subdivision or by any
governmental agency, and as owner thereof to possess and exercise all the
rights, powers and privileges of ownership, including the right to execute
consents and vote thereon, and to do any and all acts and things necessary
or advisable for the preservation, protection, improvement and enhancement
in value thereof.
To enter into, make and perform contracts of every kind and description
with any person, firm, association, corporation, municipality, county,
state, body politic or government or colony or dependency thereof.
To borrow or raise monies for any of the purposes of the corporation
and, from time to time without limit as to amount, to draw, make,

accept, endorse, execute and issue promissory notes, drafts, bills of
exchange, warrants, bonds, debentures and other negotiable or
non-negotiable instruments and evidences of indebtedness, and to secure
the payment of any thereof and of the interest thereon by mortgage upon
or pledge, conveyance or assignment in trust of the whole or any part of
the property of the corporation, whether at the time owned or thereafter
acquired, and to sell, pledge or otherwise dispose of such bonds or
other obligations of the corporation for its corporate purposes.
To loan to any person, firm or corporation any of its surplus funds,
either with or without security.
To purchase, hold, sell and transfer the shares of its own capital
stock; provided it shall not use its funds or property for the purchase
of its own shares of capital stock when such use would cause any
impairment of its capital except as otherwise permitted by law, and
provided further that shares of its own capital stock belonging to it
shall not be voted upon directly or indirectly.
To have one or more offices, to carry on all or any of its operations
and business and without restriction or limit as to amount to purchase or
otherwise acquire, hold, own, mortgage, sell, convey or otherwise dispose
of, real and personal property of every class and description in any of
the states, districts, territories or colonies of the United States, and
in any and all foreign countries, subject to the laws of such state,
district, territory, colony or country.
In general to carry on any other business in connection with the
foregoing, and to have and exercise all the powers conferred by the laws
of Delaware upon corporations formed under the General Corporation Law
of the State of Delaware, and to do any or all of the things
hereinbefore set forth to the same extent as natural persons might or
could do.
The objects and purposes specified in the foregoing clauses shall,
except where otherwise expressed, be in nowise limited or restricted by
reference to, or inference from, the terms of any other clause in this
certificate of incorporation, but the objects and purposes specified in each of
the foregoing clauses of this article shall be regarded as independent objects
and purposes.
FOURTH. The total number of shares of stock which the corporation
shall have authority to issue is five million (5,000,000), and the par value of
each of the shares is Five Cents ($.05), amounting in the aggregate to Two
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00).
FIFTH. The minimum amount of capital with which the corporation will
commence its business is One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00).
SIXTH. The corporation is to have perpetual existence.
SEVENTH. The private property of the stockholders shall not be subject
to the payment of corporate debts to any extent whatever.
EIGHTH. In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred
by statute, the board of directors is expressly authorized :
To make, alter, or repeal the bylaws of the corporation.
To authorize and cause to be executed mortgages and liens upon the
real and personal property of the corporation.
To set apart out of any of the funds of the corporation available for
dividends a reserve or reserves for any proper purpose and to abolish
any such reserve in the manner in which it was created.
By resolution passed by a majority of the whole board, to designate one
or more committees, each committee to consist of two or more of the
directors of the corporation, which, to the extent provided in the
resolution or in the by-laws of the corporation, shall have and may
exercise the powers of the board of directors in the management of the
business and affairs of the corporation, and may authorize the seal of
the corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it. Such

committee or committees shall have such name or names as may be stated
in the by-laws of the corporation or as may be determined from time to
time by resolution adopted by the board of directors.
When and as authorized by the affirmative vote of the holders of a
majority of the stock issued and outstanding having voting power given
at a stockholders' meeting duly called for that purpose, or when
authorized by the written consent of the holders of a majority of the
voting stock issued and outstanding, to sell, lease or exchange all or
substantially all of the property and assets of the corporation,
including its good will and its corporate franchises, upon such terms
and conditions and for such consideration, which may be in whole or in
part shares of stock in, and/or other securities of, any other
corporation or corporations, as its board of directors shall deem
expedient and for the best interests of the corporation.
NINTH. Meetings of stockholders may be held outside the State of
Delaware, if the by-laws so provide. The books of the corporation may be kept
(subject to any provision contained in the statutes) outside the State of
Delaware at such place or places as may be designated from time to time by the
board of directors or in the by-laws of the corporation. Elections of directors
need not be by ballot unless the by-laws of the corporation shall so provide.
TENTH. The corporation reserves the right to amend, alter, change or
repeal any provision contained in this certificate of incorporation, in the
manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute, and all rights conferred upon
stockholders herein are granted subject to this reservation.
ELEVENTH. No Director shall be personally liable to the corporation or
any stockholder for monetary damages for a breach of fiduciary duty as a
director, except for any matter in respect of which such director shall be
liable under Section 174 of Title 8 of the Delaware Code (relating to the
Delaware General Corporation Law) or any amendment thereto or successor
provision thereto or shall be liable by reason that, in addition to any and all
other requirements for such liability, he (i) shall have breached his duty of
loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders, (ii) shall not have acted in
good faith, or, in failing to act, shall not have acted in good faith, (iii)
shall have acted in a manner involving intentional misconduct or a knowing
violation of law or, in failing to act, shall have acted in a manner involving
intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law or (iv) shall have derived
an improper personal benefit. Neither the amendment nor repeal of this Article
Eleventh, nor the adoption of any provision of the certificate of
incorporation inconsistent with this Article Eleventh, shall eliminate or
reduce the effect of this Article Eleventh in respect of any matter occurring,
or any cause of action, suit or claim that, but for this Article Eleventh
would accrue or arise, prior to such amendment, repeal or adoption of an
inconsistent provision.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, VSE Corporation has caused this certificate to be
signed and executed in its name by D.M. Ervine, its chairman of the board of
directors and chief executive officer, attested by C.S. Weber, its secretary,
this 20th day of February, 1996.
ATTEST:
/s/ C. S. WEBER
C.S. Weber,
Secretary

VSE CORPORATION
/s/ D. M. ERVINE
D.M. Ervine,
Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT IV
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of January 1,
1996, by and between VSE Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Employer"), and
Richard B. McFarland ("Employee");
WHEREAS, Employee currently is employed by Employer as a member of
Employer's board of directors ("the Board") and Employer's president and chief
operating officer;
WHEREAS, Employee has rendered many years of good and valuable service
to the Employer and has contributed greatly to Employer's growth and success;
WHEREAS, Employer wishes to induce Employee to remain in Employer s
employ to prevent the significant loss which Employer would incur if Employee
were to leave and to enter the employment of a competitor;
WHEREAS, in the current business climate of takeovers and acquisitions,
Employee may be concerned about the continuation of his employment and his
status and responsibilities if a Change in Control (as defined below) occurs,
and Employer is concerned that Employee may be approached by others with
employment opportunities;
WHEREAS, Employer desires to ensure that, if a Change in Control appears
possible, Employee will be in a secure position from which he can objectively
engage in any potential deliberations or negotiations respecting such Change
in Control without fear of any direct or implied threat to his employment,
status and responsibilities; and
WHEREAS, Employee desires to have the foregoing assurances.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained
herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the adequacy of which
is hereby acknowledged, Employer and Employee, each intending to be legally
bound, agree as follows:
1. Term
The term of Employee's employment hereunder shall commence on the
date hereof and shall continue until January 1, 1999, except as otherwise
provided in Section 7. If the term of Employee's employment hereunder shall
have continued until January 1, 1999, thereafter, such term of Employee's
employment hereunder shall be deemed to be renewed automatically, on the same
terms and conditions contained herein, for successive periods of one year
each, unless and until either Employer or Employee, at least 90 days prior to
the expiration of the original term or any such extended term, shall give
written notice to the other of his or its intention not to renew the term of
Employee's employment hereunder. All references herein to the "Term" refer to
the original term of Employee's employment hereunder and all extensions
thereof.
2. Duties
(a) Offices
During the Term, Employee shall serve as a director of
Employer and as Employer's president and chief operating officer, and the
Board shall renominate Employee as a director of Employer and reelect Employee
as Employer's president and chief operating officer, and Employee shall
perform the duties of those positions, as assigned to him by the Board.
Employer agrees that Employee will be assigned only duties of the type, nature
and dignity normally assigned to the chief operating officer of a corporation
of the size, stature and nature of Employer. During the Term, Employee shall
have, at a minimum, the same perquisites of office as he had on the date
hereof, and he shall report directly to the Employer's chief executive
officer.
(b) Full-Time Basis

During the Term, Employee shall devote, on a full-time
basis, his services, skills and abilities to his employment hereunder,
excepting periods of vacation, illness or Disability (as defined below), and
excepting any pursuits which do not materially interfere with his duties
hereunder or present a conflict of interest with the interests of Employer or
of any subsidiary thereof ("Subsidiary").
3. Compensation
(a)

Salary

During the Term, as compensation for services rendered by
Employee hereunder, Employer shall pay to Employee a base salary at the rate
of not less than $175,000 per annum, payable in installments in accordance
with Employer's policy governing salary payments to senior officers generally
("Base Salary"). In January of every year during the Term, Employee's
compensation, including Base Salary, will be subject to the Board's review,
provided that, the Base Salary shall not be less than the rate of $175,000 per
annum.
(b) Performance Bonus
Except as otherwise provided in Section 7, in addition to
the Base Salary, Employee shall be eligible for an annual performance bonus as
determined by the Board or its Compensation Committee ("Performance Bonus").
Any Performance Bonus payable pursuant to this Section 3(b) shall be paid
within 30 days after the end of the fiscal period to which such Performance
Bonus relates.
(c) Other Compensation Plans or Arrangements
During the Term, Employee shall also be eligible to
participate in all other currently existing or subsequently implemented
compensation or benefit plans or arrangements available generally to other
officers or senior officers of Employer, including Employer's Deferred
Supplemental Compensation Plan, ESOP/401(k), and any stock option, stock
purchase or similar stock plans or arrangements.
(d) Tax Withholdings
Employer shall withhold from Employee's compensation
hereunder and pay over to the appropriate governmental agencies all payroll
taxes, including income, social security, and unemployment compensation taxes,
required by the federal, state and local governments with jurisdiction over
Employer.
4. Benefits
During the Term, Employee shall be entitled to such comparable
fringe benefits and perquisites as may be provided to any or all of Employer's
senior officers pursuant to policies established from time to time by the
Board. These fringe benefits and perquisites shall include holidays, group
health insurance, short term and long term disability insurance and life
insurance, vehicle allowances, and supplemental executive health care
benefits. Also, during the Term, Employee shall be entitled (a) to 30 days
paid leave per annum and to accrue unused leave from year to year and (b) to
be reimbursed for the costs of physical examinations up to $1,000 per annum.
5. Expenses and Other Perquisites
Employer shall reimburse Employee for all reasonable and proper
business expenses incurred by him in the performance during the Term of his
duties hereunder, in accordance with Employer's customary practices for senior
officers, and provided such business expenses are reasonably documented.
Also, during the Term, Employer shall continue to provide Employee with an
office and suitable office fixtures, telephone services, and secretarial
assistance of a nature appropriate to Employee's position and status.
6. Exclusive Services, Confidential Information, Business Opportunities
and Non-Solicitation
(a) Exclusive Services

(i) During the Term, Employee shall at all times devote his fulltime attention, energies, efforts and skills to Employer's business and shall
not, directly or indirectly, engage in any other business activity, whether or
not for profit, gain or other pecuniary advantages, without the Board's written
consent, provided that such prior consent shall not be required with respect
to (1) business interests that neither compete with Employer or any
Subsidiaries nor interfere with Employee's duties and obligations hereunder
and (2) Employee's charitable, eleemosynary, philanthropic or professional
association activities.
(ii) During the Term, Employee shall not, without the
Board's prior written consent, directly or indirectly, either as an officer,
director, employee, agent, advisor, consultant, principal, stockholder,
partner, owner or in any other capacity, on his own behalf or otherwise, in
any way engage in, represent, be connected with or have a financial interest
in, any business which is, or to his knowledge, is about to become, engaged in
the business of providing engineering, management, energy or environmental
services to the United States Government or any department, agency, or
instrumentality thereof or any state or local governmental agency or to any
person, corporation or other entity (collectively a "Person") with which
Employer or any Subsidiary is currently or has previously done business or any
subsequent line of business developed by Employee or any Subsidiary during the
Term. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Employee shall be permitted to own
passive investments in publicly held companies provided that such investments
do not exceed five percent of any such company's outstanding equity.
(b) Confidential Information
During the Term and for the first 24 consecutive months
after the termination of the Term, Employee shall not disclose or use,
directly or indirectly, any Confidential Information (as defined below). For
the purposes of this Agreement, "Confidential Information" shall mean all
information disclosed to Employee, or known by him as a consequence of or
through his employment with Employer or any Subsidiary, where such information
is not generally known in the trade or industry or was regarded or treated as
confidential by Employer or any Subsidiary, and where such information refers
or relates in any manner whatsoever to the business activities, processes,
services or products of Employer or its Subsidiaries. Confidential
Information shall include business and development plans (whether
contemplated, initiated or completed), information with respect to the
development of technical and management services, business contacts, methods
of operation, results of analysis, business forecasts, financial data, costs,
revenues, and similar information. Upon termination of Term, Employee shall
immediately return to Employer all of property of Employer or any Subsidiary
and Confidential Information which is in tangible form, and all copies thereof.
(c) Business Opportunities
( i ) During the Term, Employee shall promptly disclose to
Employer each business opportunity of a type which, based upon its prospects
and relationship to the existing businesses of Employer or any Subsidiary,
Employer or any Subsidiary might reasonably consider pursuing. Upon
termination of the Term, regardless of the circumstances thereof, Employer
shall have the exclusive right to participate in or undertake any such
opportunity on its own behalf without any involvement of Employee.
(ii) During the Term, Employee shall refrain from engaging
in any activity, practice or act which conflicts with, or has the potential to
conflict with, the interests of Employer or its Subsidiaries, and he shall
avoid any acts or omissions which are disloyal to, or competitive with
Employer or its Subsidiaries.
(d) Non-Solicitation of Executives
During the Term and for the first 24 consecutive months
after termination of the Term , Employee shall not, except in the course of
his duties hereunder, directly or indirectly, induce or attempt to induce or
otherwise counsel, advise, ask or encourage any person to leave the employ of
Employer or any Subsidiary, or solicit or offer employment to any person who
was employed by Employer or any Subsidiary at any time during the twelve-month
period preceding the solicitation or offer.
(e) Covenant Not To Compete

(i) If Employee voluntarily terminates the Term, or if
Employer terminates the Term for Cause (as defined below), Employee shall not,
during the first 24 consecutive months following such termination, engage in
competition with Employer or any Subsidiary, or solicit, from any person or
entity who purchased any then existing product or service from Employer or any
Subsidiary during his employment hereunder, the purchase of any then existing
product or service in competition with then existing products or services of
Employer or any Subsidiary.
(ii) For purposes of this Agreement, Employee shall be
deemed to engage in competition with Employer if he shall directly or
indirectly, either individually or as a stockholder, director, officer,
partner, consultant, owner, employee, agent, or in any other capacity, consult
with or otherwise assist any person or entity engaged in providing technical
and management services to any person or entity which Employer or any
Subsidiary, during the Term, has developed or is working to develop.
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if Employer is in material
breach of this Agreement, the provisions of this Section 6 shall not apply.
(f) Employee Acknowledgment
Employee hereby agrees and acknowledges that the
restrictions imposed upon him by the provisions of this Section 6 are fair and
reasonable considering the nature of Employer's business, and are reasonably
required for Employer's protection.
(g) Invalidity
If a court of competent jurisdiction or an arbitrator shall
declare any provision or restriction contained in this Section 6 as
unenforceable or void, the provisions of this Section 6 shall remain in full
force and effect to the extent not so declared to be unenforceable or void,
and the court may modify the invalid provision to make it enforceable to the
maximum extent permitted by law.
(h) Specific Performance
Employee agrees that if he breaches any of the provisions of
this Section 6, the remedies available at law to Employer would be inadequate
and in lieu thereof, or in addition thereto, Employer shall be entitled to
appropriate equitable remedies, including specific performance and injunctive
relief. Employee agrees not to enter into any agreement, either written or
oral, which may conflict with this Agreement, and Employee authorizes Employer
to make known the terms of Sections 6 and 7 hereof to any Person, including
future employers of Employee.
7. Termination
(a) By Employer
(i) Termination for Cause
Employer may for Cause (as defined below) terminate
the Term at any time by written notice to Employee. For purposes of this
Agreement, the term "Cause" shall mean any one or more of the following: (1)
conduct by Employee which is materially illegal or fraudulent; (2) the breach
or violation by Employee of any of the material provisions of this Agreement,
provided that Employee must first be given notice by the Board of the alleged
breach or violation and 30 days to cure said alleged breach or violation; (3)
Employee's use of illegal drugs or abuse of alcohol or authorized drugs which
impairs Employee's ability to perform his duties hereunder, provided that
Employee must be given notice by the Board of such impairment and 60 days to
cure the impairment; (4) Employee's knowing and willful neglect of duties or
negligence in the performance of his duties which materially affects
Employer's or any Subsidiary's business, provided that Employee must first be
given notice by the Board of such alleged neglect or negligence and 30 days to
cure said alleged neglect or negligence. If a termination occurs pursuant to
clause (1) above, the date on which the Term is terminated (the "Termination
Date") shall be the date Employee receives notice of termination and, if a
termination occurs pursuant to clauses (2), (3) or (4) above, the Termination
Date shall be the date on which the specified cure period expires. In any
event, as of the Termination Date (in the absence of satisfying the alleged

breach or violation within the applicable cure period), Employee shall be
relieved of all of his duties hereunder and Employee shall not be entitled to
the accrual or provision of any compensation or benefit, after the Termination
Date but Employee shall be entitled to the provision of all compensation and
other benefits that shall have accrued as of the Termination Date, including
Base Salary, Performance Bonuses, paid leave benefits, Deferred Compensation
Units, Deferred Supplemental Compensation, and reimbursement of incurred
business expenses.
(ii) Termination Without Cause
Employer may, in its sole discretion, without Cause,
terminate the Term at any time by providing Employee with (a) 60 days' prior
notice thereof and (b) on or prior to the Termination Date, a lump sum
severance compensation payment equal to the total amount of Employee's Base
Salary payable for one (1) year hereunder, based upon the amount in effect as
of the effective Termination Date. In such event, Employee shall not be
entitled to the accrual or provision of any other compensation or benefit
after the Termination Date other than (a) the medical and hospitalization
benefits for the first 18 months after the Termination Date; (b) the provision
of all compensation and other benefits that shall have accrued as of the
Termination Date, including Base Salary, Performance Bonus, paid leave
benefits, Deferred Compensation Units, Deferred Supplemental Compensation and
reimbursements of incurred expenses; and (c) all stock options or similar
rights to acquire capital stock granted by Employer to Employee shall
automatically become vested and exercisable in whole or in part.
(b) Death or Disability
The Term shall be terminated immediately and automatically
upon Employee's death or "Disability." The term "Disability" shall mean
Employee's inability to perform all of the essential functions of his
position hereunder for a period of 26 consecutive weeks or for an aggregate of
150 work days during any 12-month period by reason of illness, accident or any
other physical or mental incapacity, as may be permitted by applicable law.
Employee's capability to continue performance of Employee's duties hereunder
shall be determined by a panel composed of two independent medical doctors
appointed by the Board and one appointed by the Employee or his designated
representative. If the panel is unable to reach a decision the matter will be
referred to arbitration in accordance with Section 8. In the event of
Employee's death or Disability for any period of six consecutive months,
Employee (or his designated beneficiary) will be paid his Base Salary then in
effect for one full year following the date of death or disability.
(c) By Employee
(i) Employee may, in his sole discretion, without cause,
terminate the Term at any time upon 90 days' written notice to Employer. If
Employee exercises such termination right, Employer may, at its option, at any
time after receiving such notice from Employee, relieve him of his duties and
terminate the Term at any time prior to the expiration of said notice period.
If the Term is terminated by Employee or Employer pursuant to this Section
7(c)( i ), Employee shall not be entitled to any further Base Salary or the
accrual or provision of any compensation or benefits after the Termination
Date, including, without limitation, any of the medical and hospitalization
benefits described in Section 7(a)(ii)(1).
(ii) If, during the Term, a Change of Control (as defined
below) occurs and, without his consent, Employee is assigned duties materially
inconsistent with his position and status with Employer as of the date hereof,
Employee may, in his sole discretion, terminate the Term upon 30 days' notice
of Employer. If Employee exercises such termination right, Employer may, at
its option, at any time after receiving such notice from Employee, relieve him
of his duties hereunder and terminate the Term at any time prior to the
expiration of said notice period. If this Agreement is terminated by Employee
or Employer pursuant to this Section 7(c)(ii), Employee shall be entitled (a)
to receive on or prior to the Termination Date a lump sum severance
compensation payment equal to two (2) times the total amount of Employee s
Base Salary payable hereunder, based on the amount in effect as of the
Termination Date; (b) the medical and hospitalization benefits and all
compensation and other benefits that shall have accrued as of the Termination
Date, as described in Section 7(a)(ii)(1); and (c) to the automatic vesting
and exercisability in whole or in part of all stock options or similar rights

to acquire capital stock granted by Employer to Employee; provided that
Employee shall not be entitled, after the Termination Date to the accrual or
provision of any other compensation or benefits payable hereunder, including
the Performance Bonus.
(d) Change of Control
For purposes of this Section 7, a "Change of Control" shall
be deemed to have occurred upon the happening of any of the following events:
( i ) any "person", including a "group," as such terms as defined in Sections
13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the
rules promulgated thereunder (collectively the "Exchange Act"), other than a
trustee or other fiduciary holding voting securities of Employer ("Voting
Securities") under any Employer-sponsored benefit plan, becomes the beneficial
owner, as defined under the Exchange Act, directly or indirectly, whether by
purchase or acquisition or agreement to act in concert or otherwise, of 30% or
more of the outstanding Voting Securities; (ii) a cash tender or exchange
offer is completed for such amount of Voting Securities which, together with
the Voting Securities then beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by the
offeror (and affiliates thereof) constitutes 40% or more of the outstanding
Voting Securities; (iii) except in the case of a merger or consolidation in
which (a) Employer is the surviving corporation and (b) the holders of Voting
Securities immediately prior to such merger or consolidation beneficially own,
directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the outstanding Voting Securities
immediately after such merger or consolidation (there being excluded from the
number of Voting Securities held by such holders, but not from the outstanding
Voting Securities, any Voting Securities received by affiliates of the other
constituent corporation(s) in the merger or consolidation in exchange for
stock of such other corporation), Employer's shareholders approve an agreement
to merge, consolidate, liquidate, or sell all or substantially all of
Employer's assets; or (iv) two or more directors are elected to the Board
without having previously been nominated and approved by the members of the
Board incumbent on the day immediately preceding such election. For purposes
of this Section 7, "affiliate" of a person or another entity shall mean a
person or other entity that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by,
or is under common control with the person or other entity specified.
(e) No Duty to Mitigate
If Employee is entitled to the compensation and other
benefits provided under Sections 7(a)(ii) or (c)(ii), Employee shall have no
obligation to seek employment to mitigate his damages hereunder.
8. Arbitration
Whenever a dispute arises between the parties concerning this
Agreement or any of the obligations hereunder, or Employee's employment
generally, Employer and Employee shall use their best efforts to resolve the
dispute by mutual agreement. If any dispute cannot be resolved by Employer
and Employee, it shall be submitted to arbitration to the exclusion of all
other avenues of relief and adjudicated pursuant to the American Arbitration
Association's Rules for Employment Dispute Resolution then in effect. The
decision of the arbitrator must be in writing and shall be final and binding
on the parties, and judgment may be entered on the arbitrator's award in any
court having jurisdiction thereof. The arbitrator's authority in granting
relief to Employee shall be limited to an award of compensation, benefits and
unreimbursed expenses as described in Sections 3, 4, and 5 above, and to the
release of Employee from the provisions of Section 6 and the arbitrator shall
have no authority to award other types of damages or relief to Employee,
including consequential or punitive damages. The arbitrator shall also have
no authority to award consequential or punitive damages to Employer for
violations of this Agreement by Employee. The expenses of the arbitration
shall be borne by the losing party to the arbitration and the prevailing party
shall be entitled to recover from the losing party all of its or his own costs
and attorneys fees with respect to the arbitration. Nothing in this Section
8 shall be construed to derogate Employer's rights to seek legal and equitable
relief in a court of competent jurisdiction as contemplated by Section 6(h).
9. Non-Waiver
It is understood and agreed that one party's failure at any time
to require the performance by the other party of any of the terms, provisions,
covenants or conditions hereof shall in no way affect the first party's right

thereafter to enforce the same, nor shall the waiver by either party of the
breach of any term, provision, covenant or condition hereof be taken or held
to be a waiver of any succeeding breach.
10. Severability
If any provision of this Agreement conflicts with the law under
which this Agreement is to be construed, or if any such provision is held
invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or any
arbitrator, such provision shall be deleted from this Agreement and the
Agreement shall be construed to give full effect to the remaining provision
thereof.
11. Survivability
Unless otherwise provided herein, upon termination of the Term,
the provisions of Sections 6(b), (d) and (e) shall nevertheless remain in full
force and effect.
12. Governing Law
This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed
according to the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, without regard to the
conflict of law provisions thereof.
13. Construction
The paragraph headings and captions contained in this Agreement
are for convenience only and shall not be construed to define, limit or affect
the scope or meaning of the provisions hereof. All references herein to
Sections shall be deemed to refer to Sections of this Agreement.
14. Entire Agreement
This Agreement contains and represents the entire agreement of
Employer and Employee and supersedes all prior agreements, representations or
understandings, oral or written, express or implied with respect to the
subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be modified or amended in any
way unless in a writing signed by each of Employer and Employee. No
representation, promise or inducement has been made by either Employer or
Employee that is not embodied in this Agreement, and neither Employer nor
Employee shall be bound by or liable for any alleged representation, promise
or inducement not specifically set forth herein.
15. Assignability
Neither this Agreement nor any rights or obligations of Employer
or Employee hereunder may be assigned by Employer or Employee without the
other party's prior written consent. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement
shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Employer and Employee and
their heirs, successors and assigns.
16. Notices
All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing
and shall be deemed properly given if delivered personally or sent by
certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or
sent by telegram, telelex , telecopy or similar form of telecommunication,
and shall be deemed to have been given when received. Any such notice or
communication shall be addressed:
(a) if to Employer, to Chief Financial Officer, 2550 Huntington
Avenue, Alexandria, Virginia 22303-1499 with a copy to: Carter Strong,
Esquire, Arent Fox Kintner Plotkin & Kahn, 1050 Connecticut Avenue, N.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20036-5339 or (b) if to Employee, to his last known home
address on file with Employer, or to such other address as Employer or
Employee shall have furnished to the other in writing.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this
Agreement, to be effective as of the day and year first above written.

VSE CORPORATION
a Delaware corporation
Date:12/8/95

By:/s/ C. S. WEBER
C. S. Weber,
Chief Financial Officer

Date:12/8/95

/s/ RICHARD B. MCFARLAND
Richard B. McFarland
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EXHIBIT V
RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
VSE CORPORATION
VSE Corporation (the "Corporation"), originally incorporated under
the name Value Engineering Company, whose original Certificate of Incorporation
was filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on January 22, 1959, hereby
restates its Certificate of Incorporation in its entirety and certifies that
at a meeting of the Corporation's board of directors this Restated Certificate
of Incorporation was declared advisable and duly adopted by the Corporation's
directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 245 of the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. This Restated Certificate of
Incorporation only restates and integrates and does not further amend the
Corporation's Certificate of Incorporation as heretofore amended or
supplemented and there is no discrepancy between those provisions as so
amended or supplemented and the provisions of this Restated Certificate of
Incorporation.
FIRST. The name of the corporation is VSE CORPORATION.
SECOND. The registered office of the corporation within the State
of Delaware is Three Christina Centre, 201 N. Walnut Street, City of Wilmington
19801, County of New Castle. The registered agent of the Corporation within
the State of Delaware is The Company Corporation, Three Christina Centre, 201
N. Walnut Street, City of Wilmington 19801, County of New Castle, the business
office of which is identical with the registered office of the Corporation.
THIRD. The nature of the business, or objects or purposes to be
transacted, promoted or carried on are:
To carry on the business of research, experimentation, invention,
discovery, testing, development, and utilization of processes and
methods, or improvements thereto, in all the arts and sciences; including
the conception, development, execution and completion of special
scientific and development projects, on its own behalf and on behalf of
any other person, firm, association, corporation, public or private, or
the Government of the United States of America, or any foreign government,
or any political subdivision thereof, or any governmental agency, and in
this connection to operate testing stations as may be necessary or
advisable.
To construct, buy, sell, lease, license, maintain and operate
laboratories and laboratory facilities of all kinds; to carry on and
make tests, experiments, analyses and to do research work and to perform
analytical, experimental and research services of all kinds whether of a
scientific nature or otherwise, and to do any and all acts and transact
any and all business which shall or may be or become incidental to or
arise out of or be connected with such business, or any part thereof.

To engage in and carry on the business of consultants; to construct,
supervise the construction of, install, maintain, own, operate, lease,
repair, service, and generally deal in and deal with electronic,
electrical, electro-mechanical and mechanical apparatus, devices,
systems, processes, machinery, supplies and any other articles or
materials used or capable of being used in connection with any of the
foregoing.
To acquire by purchase, assignment, grant, license or otherwise, to
apply for, secure, lease or in any manner obtain, to develop, hold, own,
use, exploit, operate, enjoy and introduce, to sell, assign, lease,
mortgage, pledge, grant licenses and rights of all kinds in respect of,
or otherwise dispose of, and generally to deal in and with and turn to
account for any or all purposes, either for itself or as nominee or
agent for others:
(1) Any and all inventions, devices, processes, discoveries and
formulae, and improvements and modifications thereof and rights
and interests therein;
(2) Any and all letters patent or applications for letters patent
of the United States of America or of any other country, state,
locality or authority, and any and all rights, interests and
privileges connected therewith or incidental or appertaining
thereto.
To manufacture, purchase, sell and generally trade and deal in and
with any article, product or commodity produced as the result of or
through the use of any such inventions, devices, processes, discoveries,
formulae and improvements and modifications thereof, or the like, or any
articles, products, commodities, supplies and materials used or suitable
to be used in connection therewith or in any manner applicable or
incidental thereto; to grant licenses, sub-licenses, rights, interests
and privileges in respect of any of the foregoing, and to supervise or
otherwise exercise such control over its licensees or grantees and the
business conducted by them, as may be agreed upon in its contracts or
agreements with such licensees or grantees for the protection of its
rights and interest therein, and to secure to it the payment of agreed
royalties or other considerations.
To manufacture, purchase or otherwise acquire, invest in, own,
mortgage, pledge, sell, assign and transfer or otherwise dispose of, trade,
deal in and deal with goods, wares and merchandise and personal property of
every class and description.
To acquire, and pay for in cash, stock or bonds of this corporation or
otherwise, the good will, rights, assets and property, and to undertake
or assume the whole or any part of the obligations or liabilities of any
person, firm, association or corporation.
To acquire by purchase, subscription or otherwise, and to receive,
hold, own, guarantee, sell, assign, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge
or otherwise dispose of or deal in and with any of the shares of the
capital stock, or any voting trust certificates in respect of the shares
of capital stock, scrip, warrants, rights, bonds, debentures, notes,
trust, receipts, and other securities, obligations, choses in action and
evidences of indebtedness or interest issued or created by any
corporations, joint stock companies, syndicates, associations, firms,
trusts or persons, public or private, or by the Government of the United
States of America, or by any foreign government, or by any state,
territory, province, municipality or other political subdivision or by any
governmental agency, and as owner thereof to possess and exercise all the
rights, powers and privileges of ownership, including the right to execute
consents and vote thereon, and to do any and all acts and things necessary
or advisable for the preservation, protection, improvement and enhancement
in value thereof.
To enter into, make and perform contracts of every kind and description
with any person, firm, association, corporation, municipality, county,
state, body politic or government or colony or dependency thereof.
To borrow or raise monies for any of the purposes of the corporation
and, from time to time without limit as to amount, to draw, make,

accept, endorse, execute and issue promissory notes, drafts, bills of
exchange, warrants, bonds, debentures and other negotiable or
non-negotiable instruments and evidences of indebtedness, and to secure
the payment of any thereof and of the interest thereon by mortgage upon
or pledge, conveyance or assignment in trust of the whole or any part of
the property of the corporation, whether at the time owned or thereafter
acquired, and to sell, pledge or otherwise dispose of such bonds or
other obligations of the corporation for its corporate purposes.
To loan to any person, firm or corporation any of its surplus funds,
either with or without security.
To purchase, hold, sell and transfer the shares of its own capital
stock; provided it shall not use its funds or property for the purchase
of its own shares of capital stock when such use would cause any
impairment of its capital except as otherwise permitted by law, and
provided further that shares of its own capital stock belonging to it
shall not be voted upon directly or indirectly.
To have one or more offices, to carry on all or any of its operations
and business and without restriction or limit as to amount to purchase or
otherwise acquire, hold, own, mortgage, sell, convey or otherwise dispose
of, real and personal property of every class and description in any of
the states, districts, territories or colonies of the United States, and
in any and all foreign countries, subject to the laws of such state,
district, territory, colony or country.
In general to carry on any other business in connection with the
foregoing, and to have and exercise all the powers conferred by the laws
of Delaware upon corporations formed under the General Corporation Law
of the State of Delaware, and to do any or all of the things
hereinbefore set forth to the same extent as natural persons might or
could do.
The objects and purposes specified in the foregoing clauses shall,
except where otherwise expressed, be in nowise limited or restricted by
reference to, or inference from, the terms of any other clause in this
certificate of incorporation, but the objects and purposes specified in each of
the foregoing clauses of this article shall be regarded as independent objects
and purposes.
FOURTH. The total number of shares of stock which the corporation
shall have authority to issue is five million (5,000,000), and the par value of
each of the shares is Five Cents ($.05), amounting in the aggregate to Two
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00).
FIFTH. The minimum amount of capital with which the corporation will
commence its business is One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00).
SIXTH. The corporation is to have perpetual existence.
SEVENTH. The private property of the stockholders shall not be subject
to the payment of corporate debts to any extent whatever.
EIGHTH. In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred
by statute, the board of directors is expressly authorized :
To make, alter, or repeal the bylaws of the corporation.
To authorize and cause to be executed mortgages and liens upon the
real and personal property of the corporation.
To set apart out of any of the funds of the corporation available for
dividends a reserve or reserves for any proper purpose and to abolish
any such reserve in the manner in which it was created.
By resolution passed by a majority of the whole board, to designate one
or more committees, each committee to consist of two or more of the
directors of the corporation, which, to the extent provided in the
resolution or in the by-laws of the corporation, shall have and may
exercise the powers of the board of directors in the management of the
business and affairs of the corporation, and may authorize the seal of
the corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it. Such

committee or committees shall have such name or names as may be stated
in the by-laws of the corporation or as may be determined from time to
time by resolution adopted by the board of directors.
When and as authorized by the affirmative vote of the holders of a
majority of the stock issued and outstanding having voting power given
at a stockholders' meeting duly called for that purpose, or when
authorized by the written consent of the holders of a majority of the
voting stock issued and outstanding, to sell, lease or exchange all or
substantially all of the property and assets of the corporation,
including its good will and its corporate franchises, upon such terms
and conditions and for such consideration, which may be in whole or in
part shares of stock in, and/or other securities of, any other
corporation or corporations, as its board of directors shall deem
expedient and for the best interests of the corporation.
NINTH. Meetings of stockholders may be held outside the State of
Delaware, if the by-laws so provide. The books of the corporation may be kept
(subject to any provision contained in the statutes) outside the State of
Delaware at such place or places as may be designated from time to time by the
board of directors or in the by-laws of the corporation. Elections of directors
need not be by ballot unless the by-laws of the corporation shall so provide.
TENTH. The corporation reserves the right to amend, alter, change or
repeal any provision contained in this certificate of incorporation, in the
manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute, and all rights conferred upon
stockholders herein are granted subject to this reservation.
ELEVENTH. No Director shall be personally liable to the corporation or
any stockholder for monetary damages for a breach of fiduciary duty as a
director, except for any matter in respect of which such director shall be
liable under Section 174 of Title 8 of the Delaware Code (relating to the
Delaware General Corporation Law) or any amendment thereto or successor
provision thereto or shall be liable by reason that, in addition to any and all
other requirements for such liability, he (i) shall have breached his duty of
loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders, (ii) shall not have acted in
good faith, or, in failing to act, shall not have acted in good faith, (iii)
shall have acted in a manner involving intentional misconduct or a knowing
violation of law or, in failing to act, shall have acted in a manner involving
intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law or (iv) shall have derived
an improper personal benefit. Neither the amendment nor repeal of this Article
Eleventh, nor the adoption of any provision of the certificate of
incorporation inconsistent with this Article Eleventh, shall eliminate or
reduce the effect of this Article Eleventh in respect of any matter occurring,
or any cause of action, suit or claim that, but for this Article Eleventh
would accrue or arise, prior to such amendment, repeal or adoption of an
inconsistent provision.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, VSE Corporation has caused this certificate to be
signed and executed in its name by D.M. Ervine, its chairman of the board of
directors and chief executive officer, attested by C.S. Weber, its secretary,
this 20th day of February, 1996.
ATTEST:
/s/ C. S. WEBER
C.S. Weber,
Secretary

VSE CORPORATION
/s/ D. M. ERVINE
D.M. Ervine,
Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT VI
BY-LAWS OF VSE CORPORATION
(As Amended Through February 6, 1996)
ARTICLE I
OFFICES
Section 1. The registered office of the corporation shall be in the City of
Wilmington, County of New Castle, State of Delaware.
Section 2. The corporation may also have offices at such other places both
within and without the State of Delaware as the board of directors may from time
to time determine or the business of the corporation may require.
ARTICLE II
MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
Section 1. All meetings of the stockholders for the election of directors
shall be held in the Washington, D.C., metropolitan area, at such place as may
be fixed from time to time by the board of directors, or at such other place as
shall be designated from time to time by the board of directors and stated in
the notice of the meeting. Meetings of stockholders for any other purpose may
be held at such time and place, within or without the State of Delaware, as
shall be stated in the notice of the meeting or in a duly executed waiver of
notice thereof.
Section 2. Annual meetings of stockholders, commencing with the year 1986,
shall be held in the month of May each year at a date and at a time to be fixed
by the board of directors and stated in the notice of meeting, at which time
they shall elect by a plurality vote a board of directors, and transact such
other business as may properly be brought before the meeting.
Section 3. Written notice of the annual meeting stating the place, date and
hour of the meeting shall be given to each stockholder entitled to vote thereat
at least ten days before the date of the meeting.
Section 4. The officer who has charge of the stock ledger of the
corporation shall prepare and make, at least ten days before every meeting of
stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at said
meeting, arranged in alphabetical order, showing the address of and the number
of shares registered in the name of each stockholder. Such list shall be open
to the examination of any stockholder, for any purpose germane to the meeting,
during ordinary business hours, for a period of at least ten days prior to the
meeting, either at a place within the city, town or village where the meeting
is to be held and which place shall be specified in the notice of the meeting,
or, if not specified, at the place where said meeting is to be held. The list
shall also be produced and kept at the time and place of the meeting during
the whole time thereof, and may be inspected by any stockholder who is
present.
Section 5. Special meetings of the stockholders, for any purpose or
purposes, unless otherwise prescribed by statute or by the certificate of
incorporation, may be called by the chairman and chief executive officer and
shall be called by the chairman and chief executive officer or secretary at the
request in writing of a majority of the board of directors, or at the request in
writing of stockholders owning twenty-five percent (25%) in amount of the entire
capital stock of the corporation issued and outstanding and entitled to vote.
Such request shall state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting.
Section 6. Written notice of a special meeting of stockholders, stating the
place, date and hour of the meeting and the purpose or purposes for which the
meeting is called, shall be given to each stockholder entitled to vote thereat,
at least five days before the date fixed for the meeting.
Section 7. Business transacted at any special meeting of stockholders shall
be limited to the purposes stated in the notice.
Section 8. The holders of a majority of the stock issued and outstanding

and entitled to vote thereat, present in person or represented by proxy, shall
constitute a quorum at all meetings of the stockholders for the transaction of
business except as otherwise provided by statute or by the certificate of
incorporation. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented
at any meeting of the stockholders, the stockholders entitled to vote thereat,
present in person or represented by proxy, shall have power to adjourn the
meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the
meeting, until a quorum shall be present or represented. At such adjourned
meeting at which a quorum shall be present or represented any business may be
transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally
notified. If the adjournment is for more than thirty days, or if after the
adjournment a new record date is fixed for the adjourned meeting, a notice of
the adjourned meeting shall be given to each stockholder of record entitled to
vote at the meeting.
Section 9. When a quorum is present at any meeting, the vote of the holders
of a majority of the stock having voting power present in person or represented
by proxy shall decide any question brought before such meeting, unless the
question is one upon which by express provision of the statutes or of the
certificate of incorporation, a different vote is required in which case such
express provision shall govern and control the decision of such question.
Section 10. Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation,
each stockholder shall at every meeting of the stockholders be entitled to one
vote in person or by proxy for each share of the capital stock having voting
power held by such stockholder, but no proxy shall be voted on after three years
from its date, unless the proxy provides for a longer period.
Section 11. Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation,
any action required to be taken at any annual or special meeting of
stockholders of the corporation, or any action which may be taken at any
annual or special meeting of such stockholders, may be taken without a
meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a consent in writing,
setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the holders of
outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would
be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares
entitled to vote thereon were present and voted. Prompt notice of the taking
of the corporate action without a meeting by less than unanimous written
consent shall be given to those stockholders who have not consented in
writing.
ARTICLE III
DIRECTORS
Section 1. The number of directors which shall constitute the whole board
shall be a minimum of six directors and a maximum of ten directors. Within the
limits above specified, the number of directors shall be determined by
resolution of the board of directors or by the stockholders at the annual
meeting. The directors shall be elected at the annual meeting of the
stockholders, except as provided in Section 2 of this Article, and each director
elected shall hold office until his successor is elected and qualified; however,
no person who is not serving as a director of the corporation as of January 1,
1993, who has attained 65 years of age or more, shall be nominated, elected or
qualified to serve as a director of the corporation. Directors need not be
stockholders.
Section 2. Vacancies and newly created directorships resulting from any
increase in the authorized number of directors may be filled by a majority of
the directors then in office, though less than a quorum, or by a sole
remaining director, and the directors so chosen shall hold office until the
next annual election and until their successors are duly elected and shall
qualify, unless sooner displaced. If there are no directors in office, then
an election of directors may be held in the manner provided by statute. If,
at the time of filling any vacancy or any newly created directorship, the
directors then in office shall constitute less than a majority of the whole
board (as constituted immediately prior to such increase), the Court of
Chancery may, upon application of any stockholder or stockholders holding at
least ten percent of the total number of the shares at the time outstanding
having a right to vote for such directors, summarily order an election to be
held to fill any such vacancies or newly created directorships, or to replace
the directors chosen by the directors then in office.

Section 3. The business of the corporation shall be managed by or shall be
under the direction of its board of directors which may exercise all such powers
of the corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by statute
or by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws directed or required
to be exercised or done by the stockholders.
Section 4. Stockholders of the corporation may recommend persons to be
nominated for election as directors of the corporation at the annual meeting of
stockholders. To be considered for nomination, such recommendation must be
received in writing by the secretary of the corporation no later than ninety
(90) days before the date which corresponds to the date on which the annual
meeting of stockholders was held during the immediate prior year. Such
recommendation shall be accompanied by the name of the stockholder proposing the
candidate, evidence that stockholder is a beneficial owner of the outstanding
stock of the corporation as of the record date established for the determination
of stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the annual meeting of
stockholders, the name of candidate being proposed for nomination, and the
candidate's biographical data and qualifications.
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Section 4. The board of directors of the corporation may hold meetings,
both regular and special, either within or without the State of
Delaware.
Section 5. The first meeting of each newly elected board of directors shall
be held at such time and place as shall be fixed by the vote of the
stockholders at the annual meeting and no notice of such meeting shall be
necessary to the newly elected directors in order legally to constitute the
meeting, provided a quorum shall be present. In the event of the failure of
the stockholders to fix the time or place of such first meeting of the newly
elected board of directors, or in the event such meeting is not held at the
time and place so fixed by the stockholders, the meeting may be held at such
time and place as shall be specified in a notice given as hereinafter provided
for special meetings of the board of directors, or as shall be specified in a
written waiver signed by all of the directors.
Section 6. Regular meetings of the board of directors may be held on two
days written notice at such time and at such place as shall from time to time be
determined by the board.
Section 7. Special meetings of the board may be called by the chairman and
chief executive officer on two days notice to each director; special meetings
shall be called by the chairman and chief executive officer or secretary in like
manner and on like notice on the written request of two directors unless the
board consists of only one director; in which case special meetings shall be
called by the chairman or secretary in like manner and on like notice on the
written request of the sole director.
Section 8. At all meetings of the board a majority of the directors shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the act of a majority of
the directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act
of the board of directors, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by
statute or by the certificate of incorporation. If a quorum shall not be
present at any meeting of the board of directors the directors present thereat
may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than
announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.
Section 9. Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation
or these by-laws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of
the board of directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a
meeting, if a written consent thereto is signed by all members of the board or
of such committee as the case may be, and such written consent is filed with the
minutes of proceedings of the board or committee.
Section 10. Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation
or these by-laws, members of the board of directors, or any committee
designated by the board of directors, may participate in a meeting of the
board of directors, or any committee, by means of conference telephone or
similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating
in the meeting can hear each other, and such participation in a meeting shall
constitute presence in person at the meeting.

COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS
Section 11. The board of directors may, by resolution passed by a majority
of the whole board, designate one or more committees, each committee to consist
of one or more of the directors of the corporation; however, no committee shall
be empowered by the board to initiate or take any action without prior
ratification of such proposed action by the majority of the board of directors
then in office.
No such committee or committees of the board of directors shall have the
poweror authority
(a) to amend the certificate of incorporation (except that a committee may,
to the extent authorized in the resolution or resolutions providing for the
issuance of shares of stock adopted by the board of directors as provided in
Section 151(a), fix any of the preferences or rights of such shares relating to
dividends, redemption, distribution of assets of the corporation or the
conversion into, or the exchange of such shares for, shares of any other class
or classes or any other series of the same or any other class or classes of
stock of the corporation),
(b) to adopt an agreement of merger or consolidation,
(c) to recommend to the stockholders the sale, lease or exchange of all or
substantially all of the corporation's property and assets,
(d) to recommend to the stockholders a dissolution of the corporation or a
revocation of a dissolution, or
(e) to amend the by-laws of the corporation;
and, unless the resolution or certificate of incorporation expressly so provide,
no such committee shall have the power or authority
(f) to declare a dividend or to authorize the issuance of stock or to adopt
a certificate of ownership and merger.
Such committee or committees shall have such name or names as may be
determined from time to time by resolution adopted by the board of directors.
The standing committees of the board of directors shall have authority to
make recommendations to the board, as follows: the Audit Committee shall have
authority to make recommendations to the board with respect to the appointment
of an independent public accounting firm to review the corporation's books and
records, to review the corporation's internal and external audit programs, and
to receive the audited opinion and management report of the independent
accounting firm appointed by the corporation; the Compensation Committee shall
have the authority to review and recommend to the board the compensation of the
Chief Executive Officer and to review the compensation of other officers of the
corporation; the Finance Committee shall have the authority to make
recommendations to the board with respect to the corporation's capitalization
and long-term funding alternatives; the Nominating Committee shall have the
authority to review and to make recommendations to the Board with respect to
persons to serve on the board of the corporation; the Planning Committee shall
have the authority to review and to make recommendations to the board with
respect to business development and capitalization. Further, each of the
aforesaid standing committees shall have and may exercise a general oversight
responsibility respecting the management of the business and affairs of the
corporation as related to the specified powers of the committee, as aforesaid,
and as related to such other matters as may be referred thereto by resolution of
the board.
Section 12. Each committee shall keep regular minutes of its meetings and
report the same to the board of directors when required.
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS
Section 13. Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation
or these by-laws, the board of directors shall have the authority to fix the
compensation of directors. The directors may be paid their expenses, if any,
of attendance at each meeting of the board of directors and may be paid a
fixed sum for attendance at each meeting of the board of directors or a stated
salary as director. No such payment shall preclude any director from serving
the corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor.
Members of special or standing committees may be allowed like compensation for
attending committee meetings.
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS
Section 14. Unless otherwise restricted by the certificate of incorporation

or by law, any director or the entire board of directors may be removed, with or
without cause, by the holders of a majority of shares entitled to vote at an
election of directors.
DIRECTORS EMERITUS
Section 15. Unless otherwise restricted by the corporation's certificate of
incorporation or by law, the corporation may have and appoint such directors
emeritus as shall seem advisable to the board of directors. To qualify for
appointment as a director emeritus, the nominee shall be a retired director of
the corporation. The term "director emeritus" is an honorary title entitling
the holder thereof to all of the rights and privileges thereunto pertaining. No
compensation shall be paid by the corporation to a director emeritus for service
as such; however, the board of directors shall have the authority to award
honoraria or to reimburse expenses, if any, under specified conditions set forth
in a resolution of the board. The holder of the title "director emeritus" shall
not act as and shall not be considered a director, officer or otherwise as an
employee or agent of the corporation.
ARTICLE IV
NOTICES
Section 1. Whenever, under the provisions of the statutes or of the
certificate of incorporation or of these by-laws, notice is required to be
given to any director or stockholder, it shall given in writing, by mail,
addressed to such director or stockholder, at his address as it appears on the
records of the corporation, with postage thereon prepaid, and such notice
shall be deemed to be given at the time when the same shall be deposited in
the United States mail. Notice to directors may also be given by telegram or
telecopy.
Section 2. Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions
of the statutes or of the certificate of incorporation or of these by-laws, a
waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to said
notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed
equivalent thereto.

ARTICLE V
OFFICERS
Section 1. The offices of the corporation shall be a chairman and chief
executive officer, a president and chief operating officer, one or more
vice-presidents, a chief financial officer, a secretary, a treasurer, and a
comptroller, and such other offices as shall seem advisable to the board. Two
or more offices may be held by the same person, unless the certificate of
incorporation or these by-laws otherwise provide.
Section 2. The board of directors at its first meeting after each annual
meeting of stockholders shall choose a chairman and chief executive officer from
among the directors, and shall choose a president and chief operating officer,
one or more vice-presidents, a chief financial officer, a secretary, a
treasurer, and a comptroller, none of whom need be a member of the board. The
board may also choose such additional vice-presidents and assistant secretaries,
treasurers, and comptrollers as shall seem advisable to the board.
Section 3. The board of directors may appoint such other officers and
agents as it shall deem necessary who shall hold their offices for such terms
and shall exercise such powers and perform such duties as shall be determined
from time to time by the board.
Section 4. The salary of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer shall be
reviewed by the Compensation Committee. The Chairman of the Compensation
Committee will present the recommendations of the Compensation Committee on
the salary of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer to the board of
directors for ratification and approval. The salaries of all officers of the
corporation (other than the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) shall be
reviewed by the Compensation Committee and fixed by the Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer.
Section 5. The officers of the corporation shall hold office until their
successors are chosen and qualify. Any officer elected or appointed by the
board of directors may be removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a
majority of the board of directors. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the
corporation shall be filled by the board of directors.

THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Section 6. The chairman and chief executive officer of the corporation
shall be ex officio a member of all standing committees, shall have general and
active management of the business of the corporation, shall see that all orders
and resolutions of the board of directors are carried into effect, and, unless
otherwise provided by the board of directors, shall preside at all meetings of
the stockholders and the board of directors.
Section 7. He shall execute bonds, mortgages and other contracts requiring
a seal, under the seal of the corporation, except where required or permitted by
law to be otherwise signed and executed and except where the signing and
execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the board of directors to some
other officer or agent of the corporation.
Section 8. He shall, as chairman and chief executive officer, be vested
with authority to perform, singly or together with other officers of the
corporation, all of the duties given or imposed by these by-laws or the board of
directors of the other officers or employees of the corporation.
THE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
Section 9. The president shall be the chief operating and administrative
officer of the corporation and shall have such other powers as may be
prescribed by the board of directors or chairman and chief executive officer,
under whose supervision he shall be.
Section 10. In the absence or disability of the chairman and chief
executive officer, or in the event of his inability or refusal to act, the
president and chief operating officer shall perform the duties of the chairman
and chief executive officer, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of
and be subject to all the restrictions upon the chairman and chief executive
officer. In the absence or disability of the president and chief operating
officer, the chairman and chief executive officer shall select and recommend to
the board of directors for ratification a candidate to fill the office of
president and chief operating officer. Candidates may be selected from the
board of directors, officers or employees of the corporation or from sources
outside of the corporation. The chairman and chief executive officer will
perform the duties of the president and chief operating officer until a
candidate is chosen and ratified by the board of directors and has qualified to
perform the duties of the office of president and chief operating officer.

THE VICE-PRESIDENTS
Section 11. The vice-president, or if there shall be more than one, the
vice presidents in the order determined by the board of directors (such as
executive vice president, senior vice president, vice president, and assistant
vice president, or in the absence of any determination, then in the order of
their election), shall perform such duties and have such powers as prescribed by
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer under whose supervision they will be.
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Section 12. The chief financial officer of the corporation shall have the
financial management of the business and shall perform such other duties as may
be prescribed by the board of directors or chief executive officer, under whose
supervision he shall be.
THE SECRETARY AND ASSISTANT SECRETARIES
Section 13. The secretary shall attend all meetings of the board of

directors and all meetings of the stockholders and record all the proceedings of
the meetings of the corporation and of the board of directors in a book to be
kept for that purpose and shall perform like duties for the standing committees
when required. He shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of
the stockholders and special meetings of the board of directors, and shall
perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors or
chairman and chief executive officer, under whose supervision he shall be. He
shall keep in safe custody the seal of the corporation and he, or an assistant
secretary, shall have authority to affix the same to any instrument requiring
it and, when so affixed, it may be attested by his signature or by the
signature of such assistant secretary. The board of directors may give
general authority to any other officer to affix the seal of the corporation
and to attest the affixing by his signature.
Section 14. The assistant secretary, or if there be more than one, the
assistant secretaries in the order determined by the board of directors (or if
there be no such determination, then in the order of their election), shall, in
the absence of the secretary or in the event of his inability or refusal to act,
perform the duties and exercise the powers of the secretary and shall perform
such other duties and have such other powers as the board of directors may from
time to time prescribe.
THE TREASURER AND ASSISTANT TREASURERS
Section 15. The treasurer shall have the custody of the corporate funds and
securities and shall keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and
disbursements in books belonging to the corporation and shall deposit all moneys
and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the corporation in
such depositories as may be designated by the board of directors.
Section 16. He shall disburse the funds of the corporation as may be
ordered by the board of directors, taking proper vouchers for such
disbursements, and shall render to the chairman and chief executive officer and
the board of directors, at its regular meetings, or when the board of directors
so requires, an account of all his transactions as treasurer and of the
financial condition of the corporation.
Section 17. The assistant treasurer, or if there shall be more than one,
the assistant treasurers in the order determined by the board of directors (or
if there be no such determination, then in the order of their election) shall,
in the absence of the treasurer or in the event of his inability or refusal to
act, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the treasurer and shall
perform such other duties and have such other powers as the board of directors
may from time to time prescribe.
THE COMPTROLLER AND ASSISTANT COMPTROLLERS
Section 18. The comptroller of the corporation shall be the chief
accounting officer of the corporation and shall perform such other duties as may
be prescribed by the board of directors or chief executive officer, under whose
supervision he shall be.
Section 19. The assistant comptroller, or if there be more than one, the
assistant comptrollers in the order determined by the board of directors (or if
there be no such determination, then in the order of their election), shall, in
the absence of the comptroller or in the event of his inability or refusal to
act, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the comptroller and shall
perform such other duties and have such other powers as the board of directors
may from time to time prescribe.
ARTICLE VI
CERTIFICATES OF STOCK
Section 1. Every holder of stock in the corporation shall be entitled to
have a certificate, signed by, or in the name of the corporation by, the
chairman and chief executive officer, the president, or a vice-president, and by
the treasurer or an assistant treasurer or the secretary or an assistant
secretary of the corporation, bearing the corporate seal or a facsimile thereof
certifying the number of shares owned by him in the corporation.
Section 2. Where a certificate is signed (1) by a transfer agent or an

assistant transfer agent or (2) by a transfer clerk acting on behalf of the
corporation and a registrar, the signature of any such chairman and chief
executive officer, president, vice-president, treasurer, assistant treasurer,
secretary, or assistant secretary may be facsimile. In case any officer or
officers who have signed, or whose facsimile signature or signatures have been
used on, any such certificate or certificates shall cease to be such officer
or officers of the corporation, whether because of death, resignation or
otherwise, before such certificate or certificates have been delivered by the
corporation, such certificate or certificates may nevertheless be adopted by
the corporation and be issued and delivered as though the person or persons
who signed such certificate or certificates or whose facsimile signature or
signatures have been used thereon had not ceased to be such officer or
officers of the corporation.
LOST CERTIFICATES
Section 3. The Secretary or Treasurer who has charge of the transfer and
issuance of stock of the corporation shall issue a new certificate or
certificates in place of any certificate or certificates theretofore issued by
the corporation allegedly lost, upon the submission by the owner of such lost or
destroyed certificate, or his legal representative, to the corporation of a bond
in such sum as it may direct as indemnity against any claim that may be made
against the corporation with respect to the certificate alleged to have been
lost or destroyed.
TRANSFERS OF STOCK
Section 4. Upon surrender to the corporation or the transfer agent of the
corporation of a certificate for shares duly endorsed or accompanied by proper
evidence of succession, assignment or authority to transfer, it shall be the
duty of the corporation to issue a new certificate to the person entitled
thereto, cancel the old certificate, and record the transaction upon its books.
FIXING RECORD DATE
Section 5. In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders
entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or and
adjournment thereof, or to express consent to corporate action in writing
without a meeting, or entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other
distribution or allotment of any rights, or entitled to exercise any rights in
respect of any change, conversion or exchange of stock or for the purpose of
any other lawful action, the board of directors may fix, in advance, a record
date, which shall not be more than sixty nor less than ten days before the
date of such meeting, nor more than sixty days prior to any other action;
except that the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to
notice of and to vote at the annual meeting of stockholders shall be
forty-five days prior to the date of said annual meeting of stockholders, or
if the forty-fifth day shall not be a business day, then on the first business
day next following the forty-fifth day prior to the date of said annual
meeting of stockholders. A determination of stockholders of record entitled
to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any
adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that the board of directors may
fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.
REGISTERED STOCKHOLDERS
Section 6. The corporation shall be entitled to recognize the exclusive
right of a person registered on its books as the owner of shares to receive
dividends, and to vote as such owner, and to hold liable for calls and
assessments a person registered on its books as the owner of shares, and shall
not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to or interest in such
share or shares on the part of any other person, whether or not it shall have
express or other notice thereof, except as otherwise provided by the laws of
Delaware.
ARTICLE VII
GENERAL PROVISIONS
DIVIDENDS
Section 1. Dividends upon the capital stock of the corporation, subject to

the provisions of the certificate of incorporation, if any, may be declared by
the board of directors at any regular or special meeting, pursuant to law.
Dividends may be paid in cash, in property, or in shares of the capital stock,
subject to the provisions of the certificate of incorporation.
Section 2. Before payment of any dividend, there may be set aside out of
any funds of the corporation available for dividends such sum or sums as the
directors from time to time, in their absolute discretion, think proper as a
reserve or reserves to meet contingencies, or for equalizing dividends, or for
repairing or maintaining any property of the corporation, or for such other
purpose as the directors shall think conducive to the interest of the
corporation, and the directors may modify or abolish any such reserve in the
manner in which it was created.
ANNUAL STATEMENT
Section 3. The board of directors shall present at each annual meeting, and
at any special meeting of the stockholders when called for by vote of the
stockholders, a full and clear statement of the business and condition of the
corporation.
CHECKS
Section 4. All checks or demands for money and notes of the corporation
shall be signed by such officer or officers or such other person or persons as
the board of directors may from time to time designate.
FISCAL YEAR
Section 5. The fiscal year of the corporation shall be fixed by resolution
of the board of directors.
SEAL
Section 6. The corporate seal shall have inscribed thereon the name of the
corporation, the year of its organization and the words "Corporate Seal,
Delaware". The seal may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be
impressed or affixed or reproduced or otherwise.
INDEMNIFICATION
Section 7. The corporation shall indemnify its officers, directors,
employees and agents to the extent permitted by the General Corporation Law of
Delaware.
ARTICLE VIII
AMENDMENTS
Section 1. These by-laws may be altered, amended or repealed or new by-laws
may be adopted by the stockholders or by the board of directors, when such
power is conferred upon the board of directors by the certificate of
incorporation at any regular meeting of the stockholders or of the board of
directors or at any special meeting of the stockholders or of the board of
directors if notice of such alteration, amendment, repeal or adoption be
contained in the notice of such special meeting. If the power to adopt, amend
or repeal by-laws is conferred upon the board of directors by the certificate
of incorporation it shall not divest or limit the power of the stockholders to
adopt, amend or repeal by-laws.

